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Significant events of the period

Half-year period

19 January 2022 – Co-option of an independent director to the CNP Assurances 

Board of Directors

As part of its strategy to strengthen governance and in line

with best practice, the meeting of the CNP Assurances’ Board

of Directors on 22 December 2021, on the recommendation of

the Compensation and Appointments Committee, co-opted

Amélie Breitburd to the role of independent director, for the

remainder of the term of office of Jean-François Lequoy, the

director proposed by the BPCE group who was co-opted in

November 2021 as a replacement for Jean-Yves Forel; that is,

until the 2022 General Meeting of Shareholders to approve

the accounts for the year ending 31 December 2021.

21 January 2022 – Successful €500 million Tier 3 subordinated notes issue

CNP  Assurances has successfully completed its first Tier  3

subordinated issue of the year, placing €500 million worth of

seven-year notes due 27 January 2029 and paying interest at

1.25%. The notes qualify as Tier  3 capital under Solvency  2.

The issue was more than 2.2 times oversubscribed with a total

order book of €1.1  billion, attesting to investor confidence

in CNP Assurances’ financial strength.

16 February 2022 – CNP Assurances strengthens its framework for investments 

in fossil fuels

CNP  Assurances is strengthening its sector policy on oil, gas

and thermal coal by making the following four commitments:

• Ending immediately the financing of any new oil or fossil

gas exploration or production project and any new direct

investment in a company in the sector as long as it

develops similar projects;

• Continue to play its role as a demanding shareholder vis-à-

vis companies in the sector, by asking them to immediately

stop any new oil or fossil gas exploration or production

project;

• Continue to play its role as a demanding shareholder by

asking GRTgaz:

• to support the sectors involving renewable gas resulting

from the fermentation of waste or biomass, and green

hydrogen produced from renewable energy;

• to continue efforts to reduce methane leaks on its

pipeline network;

• Engage with governments, particularly as a member of

Net-Zero Asset Owner Alliance, to ask them to:

• end fossil fuel subsidies;

• implement public policies to gradually reduce demand

for fossil fuels from companies and households;

• expand the carbon market across different sectors of the

economy.

CNP Assurances is therefore strengthening its sector policy on

thermal coal by now excluding any new direct investment in a

company that has not adopted a plan to exit thermal coal

by 2030 in EU and OECD countries, and by 2040 in the rest

of the world.

17 February 2022 – CNP Assurances unveils its six commitments to implement 

its purpose operationally by 2025

Chief Executive Officer Stéphane Dedeyan unveiled the

commitments related to the purpose included in the

Company’s Articles of Association since the General Meeting

of 16  April 2021: “We promote an inclusive and sustainable

society with our partners by providing solutions that protect

and facilitate all life journeys.”

CNP Assurances undertakes to:

• support the development of our employees within a

community containing a wealth of talent and diversity;

• make protection solutions accessible to everyone, regardless

of their situation, and be there when our policyholders

need us;

• build, along with our partners, innovative, high-performance

solutions making progress for protection;

• generate sustainable economic performance in a responsible

way, particularly within the public finance division;

• help create a more inclusive and sustainable society

CNP  Assurances supports the fight against all forms of

exclusion;

• take action against climate change and protect living things.
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9 March 2022 – CNP Assurances acquires a portfolio of over 7,600 housing units 

from CDC Habitat

CNP Assurances has acquired from CDC Habitat a portfolio of

over 7,600  affordable housing units of high environmental

quality worth €2.4  billion. CNP  Assurances has acquired 85%

of the company Lamartine, created for this transaction and

managed by Ampère Gestion, a subsidiary of CDC Habitat,

which retains 15% of the capital.

24 March 2022 – CNP Infrastructures Durables: CNP Assurances and Meridiam’s 

new innovative and sustainable unit-linked vehicle

CNP Assurances and Meridiam join forces to launch the unit-

linked vehicle CNP Infrastructures Durables. Reserved

exclusively for CNP Patrimoine’s distributor partners, it offers

individuals access to a portfolio of mature, sustainable

and  ecological infrastructures characterised by resilient and

long-term returns.

6 April 2022 – With the appointment of two new directors at the Executive 

Committee, CNP Assurances is completing its organisation to support 

its multi‑partnership and international development model

To serve this development ambition, the Group is completing

its organisation with the arrival of Sonia Barrière in the newly

created position of Head of Strategic Transformation and

the  appointment of Marie-Aude Thépaut as Head of the

Europe outside France BU.

11 April 2022 – CNP Assurances announces the upgrade of Moody’s rating 

for its RT1 debt

CNP  Assurances announces the upgrade of the rating of its

RT1 from Baa3 to Baa2 following the change in methodology

by the Moody’s agency based on an equilibrium level of the

Solvency 2 ratio over the long term in a non-stressed scenario.

29 April 2022 – Press release on 29 April relating to the availability of the document 

Other information

In the context of the public tender offer initiated by La Banque

Postale for all CNP  Assurances’ shares not held directly or

indirectly by La Banque Postale, CNP Assurances announces

that the document containing the information relating to the

legal, financial and accounting characteristics of CNP Assurances

was filed with the AMF on 26  April 2022, and is made

available to the public on 29 April 2022.

It is reminded that the offer will be open for a period of

twenty-two (22) trading days. The opening and closing dates

of the offer will be published in a notice from the AMF.

3 May 2022 – La Banque Postale and CNP Assurances launch their first infrastructure

fund to help their customers diversify their savings

La Banque Postale and CNP Assurances announce the launch

of their first infrastructure fund, LBPAM Infrastructure

September 2030, developed in partnership with LBP AM

(subsidiary of La  Banque Postale), for its life insurance

customers. Available for investment from 2 May to 31 August,

this new unit-linked fund offers a target profitability of 2% net
(1)

per year over a recommended investment period of eight

years. This product allows customers to diversify their assets

and give new meaning to their savings.

5 May 2022 – CNP Assurances announces the signing of a share purchase agreement

with Mediterráneo Vida relating to its subsidiary CNP Partners

CNP Assurances signed today an agreement to sell its Spanish

life insurance subsidiary CNP Partners to Mediterráneo Vida,

after completing the applicable information and consultation

procedures with the employee representative bodies.

(1) Net of portfolio management company fees and fees on assets held under the life insurance policy
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31 May 2022 – Lemoine Law: La Banque Postale and CNP Assurances commit 

to more inclusive borrower insurance

With the entry into force on 1 June 2022 of the Lemoine Law

for new borrower insurance policies, La  Banque Postale and

CNP  Assurances are committing in favour of access to real

estate loans with the freezing of standard borrower insurance

rates and the widespread elimination of additional premiums

for aggravated health risks as part of AERAS
(1)

 level 2 policies.

31 May 2022 – Moody’s affirms CNP Assurances’ financial strength rating 

at A1 stable outlook

On 30  May 2022, Credit rating agency Moody’s has affirmed

its financial strength and subordinated notes ratings for

CNP  Assurances. Moody’s gives CNP  Assurances an A1

financial strength rating (with stable outlook).

2 June 2022 – Thomas Behar appointed Deputy Chief Executive Officer 

of CNP Assurances

Chief Financial Officer of CNP  Assurances since 2019 and a

member of the Executive Committee since 2013, the Board of

Directors has decided to appoint Thomas Behar as Deputy

Chief Executive Officer and Second in Command of

CNP Assurances as of 1 July 2022. He takes over from Xavier

Larnaudie-Eiffel.

Subsequent events

26 July 2022 – CNP Assurances acquires Swiss Life’s minority stake in Assuristance, 

a holding company of Filassistance International, and becomes its sole partner

In accordance with the provisions of the partners’ agreement

signed on 6  February 2012, Swiss Life France will sell to

CNP  Assurances its 34% stake in Assuristance, the holding

company of Filassistance International, the assistance and

legal protection company of the CNP Assurances/La Banque

Postale group.

Subject to obtaining the required regulatory approvals,

CNP  Assurances, which already held 66% of Assuristance’s

share capital, will become the sole partner by autumn 2022.

The sale is accompanied by a commitment to continue the

partnership between Swiss Life France and Filassistance

International.

27 July 2022 - CNP Assurances pursues its international growth strategy and signs an

agreement with UniCredit to rationalise the organisation of CNP Assurances’ Italian 

operations

Following its acquisition of Aviva’s life insurance businesses in

Italy last year, CNP Assurances continues to pursue its

international growth strategy with the signature of an

agreement with UniCredit, its historical partner, including the

following components:

• Acquisition by CNP Assurances of UniCredit’s 49% stake

in CNP Vita Assicura S.p.A. for €500m, allowing CNP Assurances

to increase its stake in CNP Vita Assicura S.p.A to 100%;

• Sale of 6.5% of CNP UniCredit Vita S.p.A. (“CUV”) to

UniCredit for €70m, with CNP Assurances keeping a

controlling stake of 51% in CUV.

This transaction allows CNP Assurances to rationalize the

organisation of its Italian operations and pursue its

development in the country.

The acquisition price for 49% of CNP Vita Assicura S.p.A will be

financed by CNP Assurances using its own resources. The

estimated impact on the Group’s SCR coverage ratio will be

around -1 point.

(1) The objective of the AERAS Agreement, signed by the public authorities, professional banking and financial federations, and insurance, mutual

insurance and patient and consumer associations, is to facilitate access to insurance and loans for persons having or having had a serious health

problem. Level 2 corresponds to a pooling framework for more serious risks that could not be covered under a standard borrower insurance policy
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Economic and financial environment

Financial markets rocked by war in Ukraine and inflationary pressures

The political and economic fallout from Russia’s invasion of

Ukraine at the end of February sent shockwaves through the

markets, which were already faced with spiralling inflation and

rising interest rates. The new financial balance triggered a fall

in prices across nearly all asset classes. Stock markets were

severely depressed over the period in the United States (with

the S&P500 down 21% and the Nasdaq down 30%) and in

Europe (with the CAC 40 down 17% and the EURO STOXX 50

down 20%). The bond markets were hit by the combined

effects of rising interest rates (with the 10-year OAT rate up

170  bps and the US 10-year T-bond rate up 150  bps) and

wider spreads (+70  bps for investment grade bonds and

+350 bps for high yield bonds).

A change in the central banks’ discourse with multiple knock-on effects

Spiralling inflation became a major focus of attention,

following the surge in energy prices (with the oil price up 45%)

and commodity prices. These effects pushed inflation in

Europe and the United States above 8%. Central banks in the

OECD countries confirmed their resolve to fight inflationary

pressures, announcing significant rate hikes (a 150 bps rise

announced by the Federal Reserve and a 50 bps increase by

the ECB
(1)

). Their about-turn profoundly affected market

conditions, leading to increased volatility in the fixed income

and equity markets and causing certain bubbles to implode

(crypto-currencies, technology stocks).

The dollar rose by almost 6% and reached parity against the

euro. Even Latin American currencies that had outperformed

since the Russian crisis experienced a turnaround and gave up

some of their gains.

Material direct impacts on the economy and growth

The rapid change in the environment dampened global

economic growth, with inflation acting as a drain on household

budgets and corporate margins. Despite very low

unemployment rates and rising wages, incomes fell in real

terms, severely denting household confidence and driving

down consumer spending. The trend reflected the erosion of

personal savings due to the increased cost of household

essentials (energy, food, housing), higher mortgage costs (in

the United States, mortgage rates doubled from 3% to 6%) and

the falling value of financial assets (the value of equities and

crypto-currencies contracted by around $12 trillion).

Regulatory and tax environment

Regulatory environment

French Law No. 2022-270 of 28 February 2022 (the Lemoine

Law) has had a significant impact on the term creditor

insurance business.

CNP  Assurances is one of the insurers most affected by the

new law, which aims to increase homebuyers’ access to term

creditor insurance. The main changes are as follows:

Inclusive insurance policy

A new policy has been introduced waiving medical formalities

for insureds whose cumulative debt does not exceed

€200,000 and who will have paid off their mortgage before

their 60
th

  birthday. This provision came into effect on

1 June 2022.

Cancellation right exercisable at any time

Under the new law, homebuyers may cancel their term

creditor insurance and replace it with a new policy at any time

during the life of the mortgage from date of signature of the

loan offer.

However, the new policy must provide an equivalent level of

cover, as determined based on the lender bank’s equivalence

criteria. In practice, this means that the right to cancel the

policy at any time depends on the bank accepting the

new policy.

The new cancellation right applies to new mortgage offers

issued as from 1  June 2022, and to existing policies as from

1 September 2022.

Enhanced right to information

The new law entitles prospective homebuyers or insureds to

better information concerning their term creditor insurance

cover.

The right to cancel the cover at any time must be mentioned

in the information notice, and each year the insured must

receive written confirmation or confirmation in another

durable medium (electronic mail) from the insurer of the

cancellation right, its terms and the applicable notice periods

and information deadlines. In the event of failure to provide

this annual information, the insurer risks having to pay a fine of

up to €15,000.

(1)  21 July 2022 announcement



6 CNP Assurances — 2022 Interim Financial Report

1
Management report as of 30 June 2022

Business review

The insurance distributor (any insurance intermediary or

insurance body) will be required to provide the applicant with

information about the cost of the insurance over eight years.

The lender’s obligations have also been increased, in case of

refusal or acceptance of the replacement cover.

These provisions apply to mortgage offers issued as from

1 June 2022 and to existing policies as from 1 September 2022.

Insureds representing an aggravated health risk

The law has also extended the right to be forgotten and

introduced changes in the AERAS reference list of conditions

representing an aggravated health risk
(1)

.

Since 2  March 2022, the right to be forgotten includes viral

hepatitis C and information may be retained for only five years

(versus 10  years previously) after therapeutic treatment has

been completed. This right concerns term creditor insurance

covering home loans, as well as allocated or dedicated

consumer loans and business loans for the acquisition of

premises and/or equipment. In each case, the loan must be

repaid in full before the insured’s 71
st
 birthday.

Tax environment

In the area of taxation, the key texts with an impact on the

Group concern the following topics:

Group VAT

The 2021 Finance Act transposed into French law the group

relief system for VAT provided for in Article  11 of Directive

2006/112/EC. Under this system, several legally independent

entities may be regarded as a single taxable entity for VAT

purposes (the VAT group). To elect to be regarded as a single

taxable entity, all the entities must be established in France

and be closely bound to one another by financial, economic

and organisational links. Transactions between members of

the VAT group will not be taken into account for VAT

purposes. Implementation of the group relief system for VAT

will limit the negative impact of the abolition, effective

1  January 2023, of the VAT exemption currently enjoyed by

cost-sharing and resource pooling structures such as

economic interest groupings. It will also provide clarity

concerning the VAT regime applicable to certain intra-group

services that are not currently subject to VAT.

The first VAT groups could be operational as of 1 January 2023,

provided that a choice has been made to apply the group

relief system no later than 31 October 2022.

Work is currently underway to make the necessary operational

adjustments to manage the future VAT group.

Reduction in the French corporate income tax rate

The French corporate income tax rate has been on a

downward trajectory for several years and the policy was

maintained in the 2022 Finance Act. The corporate income tax

rate is 25% from 2022 (corresponding to an effective rate of

25.83% including the social contribution).

Other general information

In April 2020, CNP  Assurances decided to create a

Supplementary Occupational Pension Fund (FRPS), CNP

Retraite, in order to have a dedicated structure for its pensions

business. The pension fund’s creation will provide an appropriate

regulatory framework for the management of long-term

benefit obligations.

It is subject to approval by France’s banking and insurance

supervisor (Autorité de Contrôle Prudentiel et de Résolution –

ACPR). The approval is currently pending.

CNP Assurances has also filed a concurrent request for approval

to transfer its eligible pensions portfolio to CNP Retraite. This

transfer will have no impact on the guarantees offered by the

transferred contracts.

Activity of CNP Assurances Group at 30 June 2022

The strong first-half growth in consolidated premium income

to €19.9  billion (up €3.6  billion or 22.4%) reflected the

€2.7  billion contribution of the new Italian subsidiaries (CVA).

On a like-for-like basis, premium income rose by €357 million

(up 2.2%), led by international operations (up €631  million or

11.3%). Premiums in Latin America were up €346  million (up

11.6%), reflecting strong Pensions business in Brazil, and

Savings premiums in Europe excluding France were up

€285  million (up 10.9%). In France, Savings/Pensions new

money contracted by 3%, with the decline in new money

invested in traditional savings products partly offset by higher

unit-linked sales.

In France, premium income amounted to €10.4 billion, down

by a slight 2.6% compared with first-half 2021.

• Savings/Pensions premium income of €8.4  billion was

down by a modest €288  million (down 3.3%), with the

€245 million increase in unit-linked sales (up 9.9%) helping

to offset the €533 million decline in new money invested in

traditional savings products (down 8.6%). The strong unit-

linked performance was attributable to La Banque Postale

(LBP, up €124  million or 12%), which led the drive to

transform technical reserves, and to CNP Patrimoine (up

€154 million or 18.1%), which won several major deals with a

unit-linked weighting of over 50%. All told, unit-linked

products accounted for 32.4% of total premium income in

France, up 3.9  points vs. first-half 2021 (increases of

3.1 points at La Banque Postale to 29.9% and 10.4 points at

CNP Patrimoine to 59.3%).

PACTE transfers for the period, which are not included in

premium income, amounted to €2.8  billion, generating a

13-point gain in unit-linked weighting on transition between

the old and new contracts.

• Personal Risk/Protection premium income in France was

up 0.7% versus first-half 2021 at €2 billion, led by growth in

term creditor insurance to keep pace with higher loan

originations by the Group’s main partners. Personal risk

premiums were stable at €677 million.

• The APE margin stands at 14.5% vs 7.6% in first-half 2021.

(1)  AERAS: Convention to help people representing an aggravated health risk to obtain insurance and credit
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In Europe excluding France, premium income came in at

€5.6 billion, an increase of 115.4%.

• Savings/Pensions new money rose by a strong €2.9 billion,

of which €2.7  billion was contributed by the CVA

subsidiaries. On a comparable scope basis, premium

income rose by €263  million to €2.4  billion, including

€219  million growth at CUV generated by marketing

campaigns focused on traditional savings accounts with a

unit-linked formula. The proportion of total premiums

represented by unit-linked contracts was a high 74.3%. CNP

Luxembourg performed well, with the €85 million increase

in new money reflecting sustained business and the Covid-

related low basis of comparison. The proportion of total

premiums represented by unit-linked contracts rose by

7.2 points to 56%.

• Personal Risk/Protection premium income increased by

€85 million to €0.6 billion, including €63 million contributed

by CVA. On a comparable scope basis, premium income

rose by €22 million, driven by the success of the products

launched in the second quarter of 2021 by CUV, which

reported premium income up €28  million (including

€19  million growth in personal risk insurance and a

€9 million increase in term creditor insurance).

• The APE margin stands at 21.6% from 20.1% in first-half 2021.

In Latin America, premium income came in at €3.9  billion,

up 30.2%.

• Savings/Pensions premium income amounted to

€3.2  billion (€2.8  billion like-for-like), with the Pensions

business in Brazil up by a strong €352  million (up 14.7%

like‑for-like).

• Personal Risk/Protection premiums were stable at

€0.7 billion (down €1 million or 0.1% at constant exchange

rates), supported by Prestamista (up €15  million) and the

personal risk business (up €11 million) which offset almost

the entire run‑off impact of the property & casualty

business (down €20  million) and the Hipotecario business

(down €8 million).

• The APE margin stands at 29.7% vs 35.8% in first-half 2021.

The Value of New Business (VNB) written by the Group
(1)(2)

during the period amounted to €308 million. an increase of

€127 million mainly due to the market effect ( €+64 million)

and the integration of CVA (VNB  €+41 million).

• The VNB in France €152 million is increasing (€76 million),

with a favorable economic effect (up €57 million) combined

with higher volumes in term creditor business.

• The VNB in Europe excluding France (€87 million) reported

an increase of €+54 million, with the integration of CVA

(€41 million), combined with the improvement of economic

conditions and the increase in the collection of unit-linked

on CUV.

• The VNB in Latin America €70 million is down ( €-3 million,

€-12 million like-for-like), mainly due to the hypotecario

run-off).

PREMIUM INCOME BY COUNTRY

(in € millions) H1 2022 H1 2021

%

Change (reported)

%

Change (like-for-like)

France 10,399 10,673 -2.6 -2.6

Italy 4,822 1,892 154.9 10.4

Brazil 3,887 2,985 30.2 11.5

Germany 240 230 4.4 4.4

Cyprus 96 90 6.7 6.7

Spain 64 71 -9.1 -9.1

Poland 37 40 -8.3 -8.3

Austria 13 11 16.4 16.4

Norway 12 12 -1.3 -1.3

Argentina 11 8 29.4 44.1

Denmark 7 10 -32.1 -32.1

Portugal 1 1 -13.3 -13.3

Other Europe 332 332 34.2 34.2

Other International 12 13 -2.5 -2.5

Total International 9,533 5,610 69.9 11.3

TOTAL 19,932 16,283 22.4 2.2

(1) VNB is calculated on a Group share basis

(2) VNB is now calculated under a S2 framework



8 CNP Assurances — 2022 Interim Financial Report

1
Management report as of 30 June 2022

Business review

PREMIUM INCOME BY SEGMENT

(in € millions) H1 2022 H1 2021

%

Change (reported)

%

Change (like-for-like)

Savings 12,923 10,225 26.4 0.3

Pensions 3,697 2,940 25.7 10.0

Term Creditor Insurance 2,172 2,042 6.4 1.0

Personal Risk Insurance 825 747 10.5 6.3

Health Insurance 165 178 -7.2 -7.6

Property & Casualty 150 151 -0.7 -12.1

TOTAL 19,932 16,283 22.4 2.2
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The interim consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with IAS  34 – Interim Financial Reporting.

As required by IAS 34, the accounting policies applied to prepare the interim consolidated financial statements were the same as

those used for the annual financial statements.

(in € millions)

Geographical area

Own-funds

 portfolio

Total 6M

2022

Total 6M

2021

%

Change

(reported)

%

Change (like

for like)
(1)

France

Latin

America

Europe

excl.

France

Premium income 10,399 3,898 5,636 19,932 16,283 22.4% 2.2%

Net insurance revenues 995 477 287 1,759 1,471 19.6% 8.2%

Revenue from own-funds 

portfolios 610 610 504 20.9% 21.8%

Administrative costs -494 -428 15.5% 5.2%

EBIT 1,874 1,547 21.2% 13.5%

Finance costs -95 -120 -20.7% -21.2%

Net share of profit of equity-

accounted companies 15 5 212.8% -23.0%

Non-controlling interests -323 -233 38.8% 11.8%

Recurring profit attributable

to owners of the parent
(2)

1,470 1,198 22.7% 17.2%

Income tax expense -389 -336 15.9% 10.9%

Profit after tax on 

discontinuous activities -61 0 N/A N/A

Net gains and fair value 

adjustments 20 -17 -216.9% 352.2%

Non-recurring items -292 -156 87.3% 87.3%

Attributable net profit 748 690 8.4% 4.6%

(1) Scope effect 2022 (CVA, Lamartine, Crédicoop et Provincia): +€20 million on the attributable net profit

(2) Recurring profit attributable to owners of the parent corresponds to attributable net profit before: income tax expense, profit after tax on

discontinuous activities, net gains and fair value adjustments, and non-recurring items. This indicator is calculated net of non-controlling interests

and is gross of income tax expense

N.B: The average exchange rate of the Brazilian real (R$) fell from 6.49 at 30  June 2021 to 5.56 at 30  June 2022 (increase of the Brazilian real

against the euro by 14,4%)

EBIT is a key performance indicator used by the Group,

because it is not affected by the timing and magnitude of

profit-taking on equities and investment property (as reflected

in realised capital gains attributable to owners of the parent)

or by changing market prices.

EBIT corresponds to attributable profit for the period adjusted for:

• finance costs;

• non-controlling interests;

• share of profit of equity-accounted companies.

The main business indicators are:

• Premium income, which came in at €19.9  billion (see

comments in Business Review);

• Average technical reserves (net of reinsurance) amount to

€360.2  billion in half-year 2022, compared with

€327.9  billion in the year-earlier period, representing an

increase of 9.9%.

Net insurance revenue for the period stood at €1.759 million,

up 19.6% as reported and 8.2% like-for-like.

• In France, net insurance revenue amounted to €995 million

(up €60  million, +6,4%) linked to improved loss ratios in

term creditor insurance (up €26  million, +8%), and higher

contribution of the Savings/Pensions business (up

€35  million, +5.7%) lifted by improved yiels on technical

reserves, combined with a favourable mix and volume

effect on unit-linked.

• In Europe excluding France, net insurance revenue was up

89.1% at €287  million. The increase was driven by strong

margins for CUV (up €34  million) thanks to the changed

frequency of technical reserve loading deductions (up

€17  million), a favourable change in Savings product mix

(up €12  million) and a favourable volume effect in the

personal risk/protection business (up €6 million).

• In Latin America, net insurance revenue reached

€477  million, an increase of 24.1% (+6.3% like-for-like), due

to a favourable volume effect in pension business (up

€17 million) and a positive impact of the Covid-related low

basis of comparison in 2021 (€19 million).
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Consolidated financial statements

Revenues from own-fund portfolios were up 20.9% to

€610 million (+21.8% like-for-like), or up €109 million, driven in

particular by France, which executed the entire 2022 profit-

taking programme.

Administration costs amounted to €-494  million, up 15.5%

(+5.2% like-for-like), ) in a period shaped by rising inflation in all

geographies and a €7.3 million increase in revenue-based

taxes in France.

EBIT

EBIT amounted to €1,874  million, up 21.2% (13.5% on a

like‑for‑like basis).

Finance costs amounted to €-95  million, down €25  million,

linked to the reimbursement in the third quarter of 2021 of

issues with historically high interest rates, which offsets the

costs linked to recent bonds with much lower interest rates.

Minority interests increased by €90  million to €323  million

due to the integration of the CVA subsidiaries and the

increased contribution of Brazil and CUV to Group EBIT:

Income tax – Group share amounts to €-389  million vs

€‑336 million in June 2021. The €54 million increase was due

to the strong growth in EBIT (€-69 million), partially offset by

the reduction in the Group tax rate.

At the bottom of the income statement, the effects of financial

markets and intangibles and non-recurring items are isolated.

Attributable net-profit was €748  million (+8.4% or 4.6% on a

like-for-like basis), reflecting the execution during the period

of the 2022 profit-taking on own-funds portfolios, reversals of

technical reserves included in net insurance revenue and a

positive impact of hedging derivatives. During the period,

€292 million was transferred to the policyholder surplus

reserve to take account of the uncertain macroeconomic

environment. Profit after tax on discontinuous activities

amounts to €-61 million related to CNP  Partners.

Consolidated balance sheet at 30 June 2022

Total assets amounted to €460.2  billion at 30  June 2022,

compared with €483 billion at 31 December 2021, or a -4.7%

decrease.

Equity attributable to owners of the parent amounts to

€17,541  million, down by €-3,593  million compared to

December 2021, mainly driven by the net income of the

period 2021 (€+748.2 million), the revaluation of AFS securities

(€‑4,007 million), 2021 dividends distribution (€-686.2 million)

and foreign exchange impacts (€+314.7 million).

Equities include subordinated notes (€1,881.3 million). Refer to

Note  5 of the consolidated financial statements’ appendices

for details.

Insurance liabilities totalled €383.5  billion at 30  June 2022,

down -6.8% from 31  December 2021. Refer to Note  9 of the

consolidated financial statements’ appendices for details.

Asset portfolio and financial management

Insurance investments for first-half 2022 totalled €407.8 billion,

compared with €443.4  billion at 31  December 2021, down

€‑35.7 billion over the period.

Most investments are measured at fair value, except for

held‑to-maturity investments and property assets not covered

by unit-linked policies, which are measured using the

cost model.

At 30 June 2022, available-for-sale financial assets represented

71.3% of total investments, financial assets at fair value through

profit or loss (trading securities) represented 26%, and

held‑to-maturity investments and other investments (mainly

investment property and loans) accounted for 2.7%.

Solvency capital

The consolidated SCR coverage ratio was 249% at 30  June

2022, up 32  points on end‑2021 (217%). The improvement

breaks down as follows:

• +29 pts related to favourable market trends over the period,

including mainly the rising interest rates;

• +3  pts related to inclusion in own funds of profit for the

period, net of dividends;

• +3 pts related to Tier 3 debt issue (€500 million) at the end

of January 2022;

• -2  pts related to regulatory decrease in the Ultimate

Forward Rate UFR
(1)

.

(1)  UFR: Ultimate Forward Rate
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Outlook

Risk factors

The risks described on pages 28 to 41 and pages 157 to 163 of

the 2021 Universal Registration Document are inherent in

CNP Assurances’ business and the economic, competitive and

regulatory environment in which the Group operates.

Pages  157 to 163 correspond to Notes  24, 25 and 26 to the

consolidated financial statements on the other analyses

presented in the 2021 Universal Registration Document,

including analyses of the various risks and MCEV
©
 data.

The risk factors facing CNP  Assurances and their level of

materiality in first-half 2022 were the same as those analysed

for 2021, in an environment still shaped by the Ukraine crisis

and record inflation.

The economic and financial situation in France and Europe is

suffering the consequences of the Russia-Ukraine conflict.

The rapid increase in interest rates, in response to rising

inflation, should boost yields on the Group’s bond portfolios

and consolidate its already strong solvency ratio in the short

term. Persistent inflation, a probable economic slowdown and

wider credit spreads in the eurozone would need to be closely

monitored, but should not significantly affect the Group’s risk

profile.

CNP  Assurances’ exposure to the Russia-Ukraine conflict is

unchanged compared to the estimates made at the end of

2021 in terms of cyber risk, country risk, credit risk and

counterparty risk, as described in the paragraph on country

risks on page 39 in the Universal Registration Document.

These risk factors are still being carefully monitored as part of

the existing surveillance system.

Outlook

CNP Assurances’ corporate mission included in the Company’s

Articles of Association since the General Meeting of 16  April

2021: “We promote an inclusive and sustainable society with

our partners by providing solutions that protect and facilitate

all life journeys” is translated into commitments undertaken by

the CNP Assurances Group:

• support the development of our employees within a

community containing a wealth of talent and diversity;

• make protection solutions accessible to everyone, regardless

of their situation, and be there when our policyholders

need us;

• build, along with our partners, innovative, high-performance

solutions making progress for protection;

• generate sustainable economic performance in a responsible

way, particularly within the public finance division;

• help create a more inclusive and sustainable society

CNP  Assurances supports the fight against all forms of

exclusion;

• take action against climate change and protect living things.

In the current context of higher interest rates and inflation,

CNP  Assurances reaffirms its ambitious development plans

and has a solid balance sheet to:

• be the most useful and unique insurer for each of our

stakeholders by turning the perception of the insurance

industry on its head, and by fulfilling its corporate mission

day after day through sustainable and inclusive

commitments;

• become an essential link in the value chain in terms of

customer and partner experience, by building a very high

value-added business model that fits seamlessly into each

partner’s operating model linking human and digital

processes.

The Group injects a triple change of dimension:

• become a full-service insurer, by the objective of integrating

LBP’s non-life activities;

• develop its international presence, thanks to its presence

in Italy;

• operate as an integrated company.
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First-half 2022 consolidated financial statements

Consolidated balance sheet

Assets

(In € millions) Notes 30.06.2022 31.12.2021

Goodwill 6 207.6 189.9

Value of In-Force business 6 499.7 532.3

Other intangible assets 6 3,719.3 3,323.4

Total intangible assets 4,426.6 4,045.6

Investment property 7 4,968.2 2,722.9

Held-to-maturity investments 7 91.7 73.9

Available-for-sale financial assets 7 289,490.9 326,409.1

Securities held for trading 7 105,520.8 108,607.1

Loans and receivables 7 4,091.7 4,159.7

Derivative instruments 7 3,589.4 1,467.5

Insurance investments 407,752.6 443,440.3

Other investments 2.3 2.4

Investments in equity-accounted companies 986.7 947.7

Reinsurers’ share of insurance and financial liabilities 8 20,622.6 21,044.9

Insurance or reinsurance receivables 9 5,431.8 2,640.7

Current tax assets 423.5 589.6

Other receivables 9,493.8 5,358.5

Owner-occupied property and other property and equipment 590.3 517.9

Other non-current assets 2,334.2 2,310.9

Deferred participation asset 8 2,699.5 0.0

Deferred tax assets 1,247.8 300.8

Other assets 22,221.0 11,718.4

Assets held for sale and discontinued operations 15 2,053.7 0.0

Cash and cash equivalents 2,130.0 1,803.3

TOTAL ASSETS 460,195.5 483,002.4
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First-half 2022 consolidated financial statements

Equity and liabilities

(In € millions) Notes 30.06.2022 31.12.2021

Share capital 5 686.6 686.6

Share premium account 1,736.3 1,736.3

Revaluation reserve 288.0 4,295.0

Cash flow hedge reserve 58.5 15.0

Undated subordinated notes reclassified in equity 5 1,881.3 1,881.3

Retained earnings and profit 12,972.7 12,113.1

Profit for the period 748.2 1,552.0

Translation adjustments (830.4) (1,145.2)

Equity attributable to owners of the parent 17,541.1 21,134.2

Non-controlling interests 4,083.7 3,628.7

Total equity 21,624.8 24,762.9

Insurance liabilities (excluding unit-linked) 8 198,778.1 195,157.7

Insurance liabilities (unit-linked) 8 73,236.2 73,777.9

Insurance liabilities 272,014.3 268,935.6

Financial liabilities – financial instruments with DPF (excluding unit-linked) 8 96,721.6 99,767.6

Financial liabilities – financial instruments without DPF (excluding unit-linked) 8 537.8 480.7

Financial liabilities – unit-linked financial instruments 8 10,249.1 10,757.3

Financial liabilities 107,508.6 111,005.5

Derivative financial instruments separated from the host contract 0.0 0.0

Deferred participation reserve 8 3,970.2 31,599.6

Insurance and financial liabilities 383,493.1 411,540.8

Provisions for liabilities and charges 311.2 297.8

Subordinated debt 7,523.6 6,942.5

Other financing liabilities 0.0 0.0

Financing liabilities 7,523.6 6,942.5

Operating liabilities represented by securities 20,042.8 18,806.7

Operating liabilities due to banks 1,384.1 178.7

Liabilities arising from insurance and reinsurance transactions 10 15,173.1 12,957.7

Current taxes payable 136.0 264.2

Current account advances 91.0 82.2

Liabilities towards holders of units in controlled mutual funds 679.8 470.2

Derivative financial instruments with a negative fair value 7 1,639.1 1,704.5

Deferred tax liabilities 155.1 847.6

Miscellaneous payables 5,957.7 4,146.5

Other liabilities 45,258.9 39,458.5

Liabilities related to assets held for sale and discontinued operations 15 1,984.0 0.0

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 460,195.5 483,002.4
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Consolidated income statement

(In € millions) Notes 30.06.2022 30.06.2021

Premiums written 20,139.5 16,378.9

Change in unearned premiums reserve (210.7) (105.8)

Earned premiums 11 19,928.9 16,273.1

Revenue from other activities 11 45.3 50.5

Other operating revenue 0.0 0.0

Net investment income 3,030.9 2,975.2

Gains and losses on disposal of investments 979.0 466.6

Change in fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (5,856.7) 3,847.0

Change in impairment losses on financial instruments (87.2) 88.0

Investment income before finance costs 12 (1,934.1) 7,376.8

Income from ordinary activities 18,040.1 23,700.4

Claims and benefits expenses (14,060.5) (20,213.0)

Reinsurance result 0.2 62.1

Expenses of other businesses (3.0) (0.3)

Acquisition costs (2,093.0) (1,926.1)

Amortisation of Value of In-Force business and distribution agreements (112.0) (70.6)

Contract administration expenses (150.5) (113.0)

Other recurring operating income and expense, net (209.7) (167.5)

Total other recurring operating income and expense, net (16,628.4) (22,428.4)

Recurring operating profit 1,411.6 1,272.0

Other non-recurring operating income and expense, net (22.8) (4.0)

Operating profit 1,388.8 1,267.9

Finance costs 12 (95.4) (120.3)

Change in fair value of intangible assets 0.0 0.0

Share of profit of equity-accounted companies 24.9 24.8

Income tax expense 13 (358.5) (371.0)

Profit (loss) from assets held for sale discontinued operations 15 (60.8) 0.0

Net profit for the period 899.0 801.4

Non-controlling interests (150.8) (111.4)

Net profit attributable to owners of the parent 748.2 690.0
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Consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the six months ended

30 June 2022

(In € millions)

Equity attributable

 to owners

of the parent

Non-controlling

interests Total equity

Net profit for the period 748.2 150.8 899.0

Other comprehensive income

Amounts recycled through profit or loss (3,648.8) 287.2 (3,361.7)

Available-for-sale financial assets (4,007.0) (91.9) (4,098.9)

Change in revaluation reserve during the period (34,270.5) (1,506.9) (35,777.3)

Reclassification of proceeds from disposals to profit or loss (952.5) (4.0) (956.5)

Reclassification of impairment losses to profit or loss 188.2 1.2 189.5

Sub-total including deferred participation and deferred taxes (35,034.7) (1,509.7) (36,544.3)

Deferred participation including deferred taxes 29,418.0 1,385.5 30,803.5

Deferred taxes 1,609.7 32.2 1,641.9

Of which, change in revaluation reserve for non-current assets held 

for sale 0.0 0.0 0.0

Sub-total net of deferred participation and deferred taxes (4,007.0) (91.9) (4,098.9)

Cash flow hedge reserve 43.4 2.2 45.6

Change in cash flow hedge reserve during the period 135.4 2.2 137.5

Cash flow hedge reserve recycled through profit or loss during 

the period (81.1) 0.0 (81.1)

Deferred taxes (10.9) 0.0 (10.9)

Translation differences 314.7 376.9 691.7

Amounts not recycled through profit or loss 16.0 0.0 16.0

Actuarial gains and losses 16.0 0.0 16.0

Other movements 0.0 0.0 0.0

Total other comprehensive income (expense) (3,632.9) 287.2 (3,345.7)

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (EXPENSE) (2,884.7) 438.0 (2,446.7)
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Consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the six months ended

30 June 2021

(In € millions)

Equity attributable

to owners

of the parent

Non-controlling

interests Total equity

Net profit for the period 690.0 111.4 801.4

Other comprehensive income

Amounts recycled through profit or loss (2.3) 163.8 161.5

Available-for-sale financial assets (166.5) (35.8) (202.3)

Change in revaluation reserve during the period (2,103.4) (36.3) (2,139.7)

Reclassification of proceeds from disposals to profit or loss (613.2) (11.3) (624.5)

Reclassification of impairment losses to profit or loss 125.9 0.3 126.3

Sub-total including deferred participation and deferred taxes (2,590.6) (47.3) (2,637.9)

Deferred participation including deferred taxes 2,264.8 (13.2) 2,251.7

Deferred taxes 159.3 24.6 183.9

Of which, change in revaluation reserve for non-current assets held 

for sale 0.0 0.0 0.0

Sub-total net of deferred participation and deferred taxes (166.5) (35.8) (202.3)

Cash flow hedge reserve 18.7 0.0 18.7

Change in cash flow hedge reserve during the period 55.7 0.0 55.7

Cash flow hedge reserve recycled through profit or loss during 

the period (29.9) 0.0 (29.9)

Deferred taxes (7.2) 0.0 (7.2)

Translation differences 145.5 199.6 345.1

Amounts not recycled through profit or loss (4.9) 0.0 (4.9)

Actuarial gains and losses (4.9) 0.0 (4.9)

Other movements 0.0 0.0 0.0

Total other comprehensive income (expense) (7.2) 163.8 156.6

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 682.8 275.2 958.0



18 CNP Assurances — 2022 Interim Financial Report

2
CNP Assurances Interim Consolidated Financial Statements six months ended 30 June 2022

First-half 2022 consolidated financial statements

Consolidated statement of changes in equity

Consolidated statement of changes in equity – First-half 2022

(In € millions)

Share

capital

Share

premium

 account

Revaluation

 reserve

Cash flow

 hedge

reserve

Undated

subordinated

 notes

reclassified

in equity

Retained

earnings

and profit

Translation

adjustments

Equity

attributable

to owners of

 the parent

Non-

controlling

 interests

Total

equity

Equity at 01.01.2022 – 

IFRS 686.6 1,736.3 4,295.0 15.0 1,881.3 13,665.1 (1,145.2) 21,134.2 3,628.7 24,762.9

• Net profit for the period 748.2 748.2 150.8 899.0

• Other comprehensive 

income (expense) (4,007.0) 43.4 0.0 16.0 314.7 (3,632.9) 287.2 (3,345.7)

Total comprehensive 

income (expense) 

for the period (4,007.0) 43.4 0.0 764.1 314.7 (2,884.7) 438.0 (2,446.7)

• Dividends paid (686.2) (686.2) (149.4) (835.6)

• Changes in capital/

Merger premium 0.0 0.0

• Subordinated notes, 

net of tax 0.0 (22.4) (22.4) 0.0 (22.4)

• Treasury shares, 

net of tax 0.0 0.0 0.0

• Changes in scope 

of consolidation 0.0 (0.4) (0.4) 166.4 166.0

• Other movements 0.0 0.6 0.6 (0.1) 0.5

Total other transactions 

with shareholders 0.0 0.0 0.0 (708.4) 0.0 (708.4) 16.9 (691.4)

EQUITY AT 30.06.2022 686.6 1,736.3 288.0 58.5 1,881.3 13,720.9 (830.4) 17,541.1 4,083.6 21,624.7
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity – First-half 2021

(In € millions)

Share

capital

Share

premium

 account

Revaluation

 reserve

Cash flow

 hedge

reserve

Undated

subordinated

 notes

reclassified

in equity

Retained

earnings

and profit

Translation

adjustments

Equity

attributable

to the

owners of

the parent

Non-

controlling

 interests

Total

equity

Equity at 01.01.2021 – 

IFRS 686.6 1,736.3 4,362.2 (15.9) 1,881.3 13,187.2 (1,157.6) 20,680.2 3,319.2 23,999.3

• Net profit for the period 690.0 690.0 111.4 801.4

• Other comprehensive 

income (expense) (166.5) 18.7 0.0 (4.9) 145.5 (7.2) 163.8 156.6

Total comprehensive 

income (expense) 

for the period (166.5) 18.7 0.0 685.1 145.5 682.8 275.2 958.0

• Dividends paid (1,077.5) (1,077.5) (185.5) (1,263.0)

• Changes in capital/

Merger premium 0.0 0.0

• Subordinated notes, 

net of tax 0.0 (21.3) (21.3) 0.0 (21.3)

• Treasury shares, 

net of tax 0.4 0.4 0.4

• Changes in scope 

of consolidation 0.0 (0.1) (0.1) 0.1 0.0

• Other movements 0.0 17.6 17.6 0.0 17.6

Total other transactions 

with shareholders 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 (1,080.8) 0.0 (1,080.8) (185.4) (1,266.2)

EQUITY AT 30.06.2021 686.6 1,736.3 4,195.7 2.9 1,881.3 12,791.5 (1,012.1) 20,282.2 3,408.9 23,691.1

Consolidated statement of cash flows

The consolidated statement of cash flows includes:

• cash flows of fully consolidated companies;

• cash flows arising from Group investments, dividends and

other transactions with associates or jointly-controlled

entities accounted for by the equity method.

Definition of cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid

investments (sight deposits and other instruments) that are

readily convertible into known amounts of cash and are

subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

They include units in “ordinary” money market funds but do

not include units in dynamic funds that are highly sensitive to

changes in market prices, in accordance with the guidelines

issued jointly by the French accounting standards setter

(Autorité des Normes Comptables – ANC) and the French

financial markets authority (Autorité des Marchés Financiers –

AMF) for the application of Regulation (EU) 2017/1131. This

approach analyses both the fund prospectus and yield

patterns (fund performance, volatility, etc.).

Cash and cash equivalents reported in the statement of cash

flows are stated net of bank overdrafts used for cash

management purposes.
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First-half 2022 consolidated financial statements

Definition of cash flows from operating activities

Cash flows from operating activities correspond essentially to the cash flows of the Group’s revenue-generating activities.

Definition of cash flows from investing activities

Cash flows from investing activities correspond to cash flows from purchases and sales of investment property and securities,

owner-occupied property and equipment and intangible assets.

Definition of cash flows from financing activities

Cash flows from financing activities correspond to all cash

flows leading to a change in the amount and components of

equity and financing liabilities, as follows:

• share issues and cancellations;

• debt issues and repayments;

• purchases and sales of treasury shares;

• dividends paid to owners of the parent and non-controlling

shareholders of subsidiaries.

Consolidated statement of cash flows

(In € millions) 30.06.2022 30.06.2021

Operating profit before tax 1,388.8 1,267.9

Gains and losses on disposal of investments (915.1) (414.8)

Depreciation and amortisation expense, net 149.6 106.1

Change in deferred acquisition costs (32.6) 19.1

Impairment losses, net 92.0 (83.4)

Charges to technical reserves for insurance and financial liabilities (683.8) 6,201.7

Charges to provisions, net (16.2) (2.3)

Change in fair value of financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss 

(other than cash and cash equivalents) 5,782.5 (3,828.8)

Other adjustments (1,925.7) (2,099.7)

Dividends received from equity-accounted companies 6.0 3.1

Total adjustments 2,456.7 (99.1)

Change in operating receivables and payables (1,105.0) 591.9

Change in securities sold and purchased under repurchase and resale agreements 720.4 71.6

Change in other assets and liabilities 136.1 (17.9)

Income taxes paid, net of reimbursements (326.4) 25.1

Net cash provided by operating activities 3,270.7 1,839.6

Acquisitions of subsidiaries and joint ventures, net of cash acquired (941.3) 0.0

Divestments of subsidiaries and joint ventures, net of cash sold 0.0 0.0

Acquisitions of associates 0.0 (37.1)

Divestments of associates 0.0 0.0

Net cash used by divestments and acquisitions (941.3) (37.1)

Proceeds from the sale of financial assets 55,123.2 36,471.0

Proceeds from the sale of investment properties 21.0 61.3

Proceeds from the sale of other investments 0.0 0.0

Net cash provided by sales and redemptions of investments 55,144.2 36,532.3

Acquisitions of financial assets (62,232.8) (39,005.0)

Acquisitions of investment properties (316.5) (139.6)

Acquisitions of other investments 0.0 0.0
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(In € millions) 30.06.2022 30.06.2021

Net cash used by acquisitions of investments (62,549.3) (39,144.6)

Proceeds from the sale of property and equipment and intangible assets 2.3 3.4

Purchases of property and equipment and intangible assets (107.8) (20.2)

Net cash used by sales and purchases of property and equipment and intangible assets (105.5) (16.8)

Net cash used by investing activities (8,451.9) (2,666.2)

Issuance of equity instruments 0.0 0.0

Redemption of equity instruments 0.0 0.0

Purchases and sales of treasury shares 0.0 0.7

Dividends paid (839.2) (1,267.1)

Net cash used by transactions with owners (839.2) (1,266.4)

New borrowings 500.0 594.2

Repayments of borrowings 0.0 0.0

Interest paid on borrowings (125.0) (150.1)

Net cash provided by other financing activities 375.0 444.1

Net cash used by financing activities (464.2) (822.2)

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 25,200.7 19,464.7

Net cash provided by operating activities 3,270.7 1,839.6

Net cash used by investing activities (8,451.9) (2,666.2)

Net cash used by financing activities (464.2) (822.2)

Effect of changes in exchange rates (5.9) 12.0

Effect of changes in accounting policies and other changes* 220.4 36.1

Effect of assets held for sale (152.6) 0.0

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE REPORTING DATE 19,617.2 17,863.9

* Effect of “ordinary” money market funds classified as cash equivalents

Reconciliation of cash flows from financing activities to the amounts reported 

in the financial statements

This table reconciles cash flows from financing activities to the amounts reported in the other financial statements. Other

movements correspond to changes in deferred taxes and fair value adjustments to the cash flow hedge reserve recognised

directly in equity.

At 30 June 2022

(In € millions)

Cash flow

hedge reserve

Undated

subordinated notes

reclassified in equity

Subordinated

debt

Other financing

 liabilities Total

31.12.2021 15.0 1,881.3 6,942.5 0.0 8,838.8

Issue 0.0 0.0 581.1 0.0 581.1

Redemption 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Total cash items 0.0 0.0 581.1 0.0 581.1

Translation adjustments 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Fair value adjustments 31.2 0.0 0.0 0.0 31.2

Changes in scope of consolidation 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Other movements 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Total non-cash items 31.2 0.0 0.0 0.0 31.2

30.06.2022 58.5 1,881.3 7,523.6 0.0 9,463.3
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At 30 June 2021

(In € millions)

Cash flow hedge

reserve

Undated

subordinated notes

reclassified in equity

Subordinated

debt

Other financing

 liabilities Total

31.12.2020 (15.9) 1,881.3 6,824.2 0.0 8,689.6

Issue 0.0 0.0 594.2 0.0 594.2

Redemption 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Total cash items 0.0 0.0 594.2 0.0 594.2

Translation adjustments 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Fair value adjustments 18.5 0.0 29.9 0.0 48.4

Changes in scope of consolidation 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Other movements 0.2 0.0 (5.7) 0.0 (5.5)

Total non-cash items 18.7 0.0 24.2 0.0 42.9

30.06.2021 2.9 1,881.3 7,442.5 0.0 9,326.7

Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents reported in the consolidated balance

(In € millions) 30.06.2022 30.06.2021

Cash and cash equivalents (reported in the consolidated balance sheet) 2,130.0 1,394.9

Operating liabilities due to banks (1,079.9) (154.0)

Securities held for trading 18,567.1 16,622.9

TOTAL (REPORTED IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS) 19,617.2 17,863.9

Cash and cash equivalents reported in the consolidated

statement of cash flows correspond to:

• cash and cash equivalents reported in the consolidated

balance sheet under assets;

• operating liabilities due to banks corresponding to short-

term bank loans and overdrafts other than financing

liabilities, reported in the consolidated balance sheet under

liabilities;

• securities held for trading, consisting of money market

mutual funds reported in the consolidated balance sheet

under “Insurance investments”.
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Significant events of first-half 2022 and subsequent events

NOTE 1 Significant events of first-half 2022

€500.0 million Tier 3 subordinated notes issue

On 21  January 2022, CNP  Assurances completed a

€500.0  million subordinated notes issue. The seven-year

notes due 27 January 2029 pay interest at 1.25%.

They qualify as Tier 3 capital under Solvency II.

CNP Assurances acquires a portfolio of over 7,600 housing units 

from CDC Habitat

On 9 March 2022, CNP Assurances acquired from CDC Habitat

a portfolio of over 7,600  affordable housing units of high

environmental quality worth €2.4 billion.

Following this acquisition, CNP  Assurances holds 85% of the

company Lamartine, created for this transaction and managed

by Ampère Gestion, a subsidiary of CDC Habitat, which retains

15% of the capital.

The entity has been fully consolidated since June 2022.

CNP Assurances announces the signing of a share purchase agreement 

with Mediterráneo Vida relating to its subsidiary CNP Partners

On 5 May 2022, CNP Assurances signed an agreement to sell

its Spanish life insurance subsidiary CNP  Partners to

Mediterráneo Vida.

CNP Partners is a life insurance company mainly dedicated to

traditional savings products in Spain and Italy in an open

model. At 31  December 2021, its premium income and net

profit represented 0.75% and 0.01% respectively of the Group’s

total.

CNP  Partners will continue to be fully consolidated until the

sale closes, with all related assets and liabilities recognised in

accordance with IFRS 5 “Non-current Assets Held for Sale and

Discontinued Operations” at 30 June 2022.

The completion of this transaction remains subject to various

conditions precedent, including the obtaining of authorisation

from the competent authorities in prudential matters. Subject

to these authorisations being obtained, the transaction is

expected to be completed in the second half of 2022.

Simplified tender offer for CNP Assurances shares by La Banque Postale

The offer took place during May 2022. At the close of the offer

period, La  Banque  Postale applied to the AMF for the

implementation of a squeeze-out procedure to acquire the

CNP Assurances shares not tendered to the offer.

At 30  June 2022, La  Banque  Postale held 99.94% of the

capital of CNP Assurances. The remaining shares are held by

CNP Assurances in treasury.
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NOTE 2 Subsequent events

CNP Assurances acquires Swiss Life’s minority stake in Assuristance, a holding 

company of Filassistance International

In accordance with the provisions of the shareholders’

agreement, CNP Assurances is to acquire Swiss Life France’s

34% equity stake in Assuristance, the holding company of

Filassistance International.

Subject to obtaining the requisite regulatory approvals,

CNP Assurances, which already held 66% of Assuristance’s share

capital, will become the sole shareholder by autumn 2022.

The acquisition includes a commitment to continue the

partnership between Swiss  Life France and Filassistance

International.

CNP Assurances pursues its international growth strategy and signs an 

agreement with UniCredit to rationalise the organisation of CNP Assurances’ 

Italian operations

Following its acquisition of Aviva’s life insurance businesses in

Italy last year, CNP  Assurances is pressing ahead with its

international growth strategy by signing an agreement with

UniCredit, its historical partner, including the following

components:

• acquisition by CNP Assurances of UniCredit’s 49% stake in

CNP  Vita  Assicura  S.p.A. for €500  million, enabling

CNP  Assurances to increase its stake in

CNP Vita Assicura S.p.A. to 100%;

• sale of 6.5% of CNP UniCredit Vita S.p.A. (“CUV”) to UniCredit

for €70 million, with CNP Assurances keeping a controlling

stake of 51% in CUV.

This transaction allows CNP  Assurances to rationalise the

organisation of its Italian operations and pursue its

development in the country.

The acquisition price for 49% of CNP Vita Assicura S.p.A. will be

financed by CNP  Assurances using its own resources. The

estimated impact on the Group’s SCR coverage ratio will be

around -1 point.

Completion of the transaction is subject to obtaining the

requisite approvals by the competent authorities.
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Summary of significant accounting policies

NOTE 3 Summary of significant accounting policies

CNP  Assurances S.A., the parent company of the Group, is a

société anonyme (public limited company) with a Board of

Directors, governed by the French Insurance Code (Code des

assurances). It has fully paid-up share capital of €686,618,477.

The Company is registered in the Paris Trade and Companies

Register under No. 341 737 062.

The registered office is located at 4, place Raoul-Dautry,

75015 Paris.

The Group’s principal business is the writing of personal

insurance. CNP Assurances’ corporate purpose is to:

• write accidental injury and health insurance;

• write bodily injury insurance covering accident and health

risks;

• hold majority interests in insurance companies.

The consolidated financial statements for the six months

ended 30  June 2022 include the financial statements of the

Company and its subsidiaries, as well as the Group’s interests

in the results and net assets of jointly-controlled entities and

associates. They were approved by the Board of Directors

on 27 July 2022.

3.1 Statement of compliance

The interim condensed consolidated financial statements

have been prepared in accordance with IAS  34 “Interim

Financial Reporting”. As required by IAS  34, the accounting

policies applied by the Group to prepare the interim

consolidated financial statements were the same as those

used for the annual financial statements.

The Group entities all apply Group accounting policies, as

presented in these notes. The accounting policies comply with

those used to prepare the financial statements for the year

ended 31 December 2021, with the exception of the standards,

amendments and interpretations listed below, effective for

2022 financial statements.

3.1.1 New accounting standards adopted since 1 January 2022

The amendments to IFRS  3, IAS  16 and IAS  37 and the Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2018-2020 Cycle, applicable for annual

reporting periods beginning on or after 1  January 2022, did have a material impact on the Group’s consolidated

financial statements.

3.1.2 Deferred application of IFRS 9 (IFRS 4 amendment)

The final version of IFRS  9 “Financial Instruments” was

published on 24 July 2014 and was adopted by the European

Union on 22  November 2016. It is effective for accounting

periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018.

However, the Group has elected to apply the option of

deferring application until 1 January 2023 (see below).

IFRS  9, which replaces IAS  39 “Financial Instruments”, sets

down accounting principles and disclosure requirements for

financial assets and liabilities.

The final version consolidates the three core phases, i.e.,

classification and measurement, impairment and hedge

accounting.

3.1.2.1 Main provisions of IFRS 9

Classification and measurement

IFRS  9 introduces a standard approach to classification and

measurement of financial assets and contains only three

classification categories: amortised cost, fair value through

other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) and fair value through

profit or loss (FVTPL).

As far as debt instruments are concerned, the assessment is

based around two criteria that determine how a financial asset

should be classified and measured:

• the business model that the entity uses for managing the

financial asset; and

• the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial

asset.

IFRS  9 introduces two types of business model for debt

instruments that pass the Solely Payments of Principal and

Interest (SPPI) test:

• the financial asset is held within a business model whose

objective is to collect the contractual cash flows. If this is

the case, the financial asset is measured at amortised cost;

• the financial asset is held within a business model whose

objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash

flows and selling financial assets. If so, the financial asset

must be measured at FVTOCI.

All other financial assets must be measured at FVTPL. An

entity may designate a financial asset as measured at FVTPL if

doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an inconsistency

in valuation methods or accounting treatment (sometimes

referred to as an accounting mismatch).
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Equity instruments are always measured at FVTPL with the

exception of those not held for trading. An entity may make an

irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive

income subsequent changes in the fair value of an investment

in an equity instrument that is not held for trading (including

realised gains and losses). Only dividends received from such

investments are to be recognised in profit or loss.

IFRS  9 retains the accounting treatment of financial liabilities

but adds guidance on certain issues, notably the impact of

changes in own credit risk in profit or loss when non-trading

financial liabilities are measured at fair value.

Impairment

IFRS  9 also introduces a new debt instrument impairment

model that involves writing off expected credit losses at initial

recognition. Under IAS 39, impairment losses were only taken

if there was a recognised risk due to the existence of one or

more objective indicators of impairment.

Under the new model, assets move through three stages:

• at investment: the entity recognises 12-month expected

credit losses and interest income is calculated on the gross

carrying amount of the instrument;

• stage 2: if there has been a significant increase in credit risk

since initial recognition, lifetime expected credit losses are

recognised, but interest income is still calculated on the

gross carrying amount of the asset;

• stage  3: if a credit event affects the issuer, lifetime

expected credit losses are recognised and interest income

is calculated on the net carrying amount.

Hedge accounting

IFRS 9 broadens hedge accounting eligibility criteria in exchange

for greater transparency in risk management disclosure.

The new model marks an important change that aligns hedge

accounting more closely with risk management and enables

entities to disclose these activities more effectively in their

financial statements. For example, IFRS  9 allows entities to

hedge the risk components of non-financial items and

homogeneous groups of items for all types of risk on a net

basis.

IFRS  9 changes certain aspects relating to hedging

instruments. In particular, changes in the fair value of the time

value of an option used as a hedging instrument may be

recognised in other comprehensive income (OCI). Eligibility

also extends to the forward element of a forward contract or

the foreign currency basis spread, thus reducing volatility in

the income statement.

The standard also makes hedge effectiveness testing less

rigid. Retrospective and prospective testing (using the 80% to

125% “bright line”) is replaced by a single prospective test

based on three effectiveness requirements: there is “an

economic relationship” between the hedged item and the

hedging instrument; the effect of credit risk does not

“dominate the value changes” that result from that economic

relationship; and the hedge ratio is consistent with the entity’s

risk management approach.

3.1.2.2 IFRS 9 transition arrangements 

under the deferral approach

IFRS  9 was adopted on 22  November 2016 for use in the

European Union for accounting periods beginning on or after

1 January 2018. However, the Group has deferred application

until 2023 as its activities are predominantly related to

insurance.

In light of the publication on 12 September 2016 by the IASB of

an amendment to IFRS  4 “Insurance Contracts” describing

how insurance undertakings should apply IFRS  9 in

conjunction with IFRS 4. This amendment, which was adopted

by the European Commission on 3  November 2017, was

issued in response to the need to align first-time adoption of

IFRS 9 with that of the new insurance standard (IFRS 17), and

provided an optional temporary exemption from applying

IFRS  9 until 1  January 2021 (the “deferral approach”). An

amendment to IFRS 4 published on 25 June 2020 extends the

optional temporary exemption from applying IFRS  9 until

1 January 2023.

All traditional insurance companies have the automatic right to

apply the deferral approach.

Application of the deferral option enables the Group to

continue accounting for financial assets in accordance with

IAS 39 until 2023.

CNP  Assurances fulfils the eligibility criteria for adopting the

deferral approach. As of 31  December 2015, its insurance

business represented more than the 90% threshold for

applying this approach.

During the deferral period, IFRS  4 requires additional

disclosures including the results of “SPPI” testing and the

reporting entity’s credit risk exposure.

The SPPI test requires that the contractual terms of the

financial asset give rise to cash flows that are solely payments

of principal and interest on the principal amounts outstanding.

The additional annual disclosures include:

• the results of SPPI testing for financial assets that are not

measured at fair value through profit or loss;

• the credit quality of debt instruments that meet the SPPI

test criteria.
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3.1.3 Main accounting standards and interpretations approved 

by the European Union but not yet in force

3.1.3.1 IFRS 17 “Insurance contracts”

IFRS 17 “Insurance Contracts” was published on 18 May 2017,

and an amended version was published on 25  June 2020.

IFRS  17 establishes the principles for the recognition,

measurement, presentation and disclosure of insurance

contracts within the scope of the standard. It replaces IFRS 4

for annual reporting periods beginning on or after

1 January 2023 (with comparative information for 2022 to be

presented on the same basis).

IFRS 17 will apply to:

• written insurance and reinsurance contracts;

• all reinsurance contracts giving rise to a significant

insurance risk;

• investment contracts with a discretionary participation feature.

The new standard requires the insurance component of each

contract to be recognised separately from the other

components, such as:

• certain embedded derivatives;

• separate investment components;

• other performance obligations, for example a promise to

transfer non-insurance goods or services.

These components will be recognised and measured

separately in accordance with the standard that would apply

to them if they were separate contracts.

When an insurance or reinsurance contract is written, the

liability will be measured according to the Building Block

Approach (BBA), based on the following blocks:

• discounted present value of future cash flows that relate

directly to the fulfilment of the contractual obligations

(fulfilment cash flows);

• a risk margin reflecting the uncertainty about the amount

and timing of these cash flows;

• a Contractual Service Margin (CSM).

The CSM represents the unearned profit of the group of

insurance contracts that the entity will recognise as it provides

services in the future. It is included in deferred revenue on the

liabilities side of the balance sheet and recognised in income

as the services are provided. If the group of insurance

contracts is expected to generate a loss, rather than recording

a negative CSM, the expected loss is recognised immediately

in profit or loss when the contracts are written.

A second model – the Variable Fee Approach (VFA) – is

applicable to insurance contracts with direct participation

features that contain the following conditions:

• the contractual terms specify that the policyholder

participates in a share of a clearly identified pool of

underlying items;

• the entity expects to pay the policyholder an amount equal

to a substantial share of the fair value of returns from the

underlying items;

• a substantial proportion of the cash flows the entity expects

to pay to the policyholder are expected to vary in line with

changes in the fair value of the underlying items.

In addition to the General Model (BBA), IFRS 17 also includes

an optional simplified measurement approach – the Premium

Allocation Approach (PAA) – which may be applied to:

• all insurance contracts other than those with direct

participation features, provided that the PAA produces a

measurement of the liability that would not be materially

different from that produced applying the BBA;

• contracts with a short duration (coverage period of one year

or less).

For the purpose of applying the PPA, the initial liability

corresponds to the premiums received at initial recognition

and no CSM is calculated. Acquisition costs may be deferred

in assets or recognised as an expense.

Under IFRS 17, insurance liabilities will be measured at a more

granular level. Specifically, they will be divided into portfolios,

as follows:

• each portfolio will comprise contracts subject to similar

risks that are managed together. A portfolio will not contain

contracts written more than one year apart;

• each portfolio will be divided into three accounting groups

when the contracts are initially recognised, for the

calculation and tracking of the contractual service margin

(CSM). The groups are as follows:

• contracts that are onerous at initial recognition,

• contracts that at initial recognition have no significant

possibility of becoming onerous,

• other contracts.

Application of IFRS  17 will have a significant impact on the

Group’s consolidated financial statements:

• it will modify the presentation of the balance sheet and the

notes;

• the consolidated income statement will be renamed the

statement of financial performance and will comprise two

key indicators:

• insurance service result, corresponding to insurance

revenue less amortisation of the CSM and the risk

adjustment, the experience adjustment (difference

between expected claims and expenses and paid claims

and expenses) and expenses on onerous contracts,

• investment income or expense;

• it would also lead to a major reorganisation of management

processes, including statutory accounting, account closing,

management accounting and internal and external

reporting systems;

• actuarial modelling tools would also be affected;

• in addition, the internal organisation of accounting

processes will need to be adjusted, with the introduction of

new measurement, consolidation and reporting processes.
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The effects of applying IFRS  17 are currently being analysed

by the Group. IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” replaces IAS 39 as

from the same dates and the effects of applying these two

new standards are being analysed jointly.

IFRS  17 was adopted by the European Union (EU) on

19  November 2021. The EU provides an optional exemption

from applying the annual cohort requirement. If the exemption

is used, this must be disclosed in the notes to the financial

statements.

3.1.3.2 Amendments to the following 

standards

The amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8 published on 12 February

2021 will be applicable from 1 January 2023.

3.1.4 Main standards and interpretations published but not yet approved 

by the European Union

The published amendments to IAS 1 “Presentation of Financial

Statements: Classification of Liabilities as Current or

Non‑current”, IAS  12 and IFRS  17 – Comparative Information,

are applicable to financial periods beginning on or after

1 January 2023.

The Group is currently studying the potential impact of the

amendments not applicable from 1 January 2022.

3.2 Basis of preparation of the consolidated financial statements

The consolidated financial statements are presented in

millions of euros, rounded up or down to the nearest decimal.

They have been prepared according to the cost model, except

for (i) insurance assets and liabilities and assets and liabilities

related to investment contracts with a discretionary

participation feature (DPF) which are measured in accordance

with Group accounting policies, and (ii) financial assets at fair

value through profit or loss (financial assets held for trading

and financial assets designated upon initial recognition as at

fair value through profit or loss), available-for-sale financial

assets, investment property held in unit-linked portfolios and

derivative instruments separated from their host contracts,

which are measured using the fair value model.

Non-current assets and groups of assets held for sale are

measured at the lower of their carrying amount and their fair

value less costs to sell, with the exception of deferred tax

assets, assets generated by employee benefits, financial

assets, investment property measured at fair value, biological

assets and assets arising under insurance contracts, all of

which are measured using their own specific valuation basis.

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with

IFRSs requires the use of estimates and assumptions that have

an impact on the application of accounting policies and on

the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and

expenses. The main balance sheet headings concerned by

such estimates and assumptions include goodwill (particularly

with regard to impairment testing), the Value of In-Force

business, assets measured at fair value not quoted in an active

market, insurance-related assets and liabilities (technical

reserves, deferred participation assets and deferred

participation reserves) and deferred taxes.

These estimates and the underlying assumptions are based

on past experience, regulatory information, generally

accepted actuarial principles and other factors considered

reasonable under the circumstances and they are subject to

sensitivity analyses when this is required by regulations or

when such tests back up the assumptions made by the Group.

They serve as the basis for the exercise of judgement in

determining the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities

which cannot be obtained directly from other sources. Actual

values may be different from these estimates. Estimates and

the underlying assumptions are reviewed at regular intervals.

The effects of changes in accounting estimates are

recognised in the period in which the change occurs.

The accounting policies described below have been applied

consistently to all periods presented in the consolidated

financial statements.

They have been applied uniformly by all Group entities.
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Scope of consolidation

NOTE 4 Scope of consolidation

4.1 Scope of consolidation and associated companies

The consolidated financial statements include the financial

statements of subsidiaries, jointly-controlled entities and

associates. Other than the regulatory capital requirements of

the insurance subsidiaries, the Group does not have any

restrictions limiting its access to assets or settling the liabilities

of the entities within its scope of consolidation.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity controlled by the Company. Control is

a function of three elements: power over the investee;

exposure, or rights, to variable returns from involvement with

the investee; and the ability to use power over the investee to

affect the amount of the investor’s returns.

Power results from existing rights that give the current ability

to direct an investee’s relevant activities. The rights that confer

power may differ depending on the investee’s purpose and

design, structure, the nature of its relevant activities or the way

in which decisions about the investee are taken. It is generally

voting or similar rights that give an investor power, either

individually or in combination with other arrangements. If

contractual arrangements have a bearing on the relevant

activities, they need to be analysed to determine whether

rights held are sufficient to confer power. In circumstances

where it is difficult to determine whether an investor’s rights

are sufficient to give it power over an investee, it may be

necessary to consider evidence of whether it has the practical

ability to direct the relevant activities unilaterally.

Exposure or rights to variable returns from involvement with

the investee are assessed based on the investor’s returns from

existing arrangements which have the potential to vary as a

result of the investee’s performance. An investor assesses

whether returns from an investee are variable and how

variable those returns are on the basis of the substance of the

arrangement and regardless of the legal form of the returns.

Control results not merely from power over the investee and

exposure to variable returns, but from the ability to use power

over the investee to affect the amount of the investor’s returns

from its involvement with the investee. Thus, an investor with

decision-making rights must determine whether it is acting as

a principal or an agent.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated.

New subsidiaries are consolidated from the date when control

is acquired. Divested subsidiaries are consolidated up to the

date when control is relinquished.

The materiality of these non-controlling interests is assessed

based on the percentage interest in the share capital of the

subsidiary, as well as their impact on the consolidated

financial statements.

Jointly-controlled entities (joint arrangements)

A jointly-controlled entity is a contractual arrangement

whereby the Group and one or more other parties exercise

joint control. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing

of control of an arrangement, which exists only when

decisions about the relevant activities require the unanimous

consent of the parties sharing control. There are two types of

joint arrangement:

• joint operations: a joint arrangement whereby the parties

that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the

assets and obligations for the liabilities relating to the

arrangement. Each joint operator accounts for the assets,

liabilities, revenues and expenses relating to its interest in

the joint operation and in accordance with the applicable

IFRSs;

• joint ventures: a joint arrangement whereby the parties that

have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net

assets of the arrangement. Each joint venturer recognises

its interest in the joint venture as an investment using the

equity method.

The consolidated financial statements include the Group’s

interest in the joint venture, recognised using the equity

method, from or up to the date when the Group exercises or

ceases to exercise joint control.

Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant

influence. Significant influence is defined as the power to

participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of

the associate.

It is presumed to be exercised when the Group holds at least

20% of the associate’s voting rights, directly or indirectly.

However, this is only one of the criteria used, and the

existence or absence of significant influence may be

determined on the basis of other factors, regardless of the

percentage of voting rights held. Other indicators of significant

influence include representation on the Board of Directors or

equivalent governing body of the associate and material

transactions between CNP Assurances and the associate.

The consolidated financial statements include the Group’s

share of the net assets and profits of associates, recognised

using the equity method, from or up to the date when the

Group exercises or ceases to exercise significant influence.



CNP Assurances — 2022 Interim Financial Report 31

2
CNP Assurances Interim Consolidated Financial Statements six months ended 30 June 2022

First-half 2022 consolidated financial statements

If the Group’s share of an associate’s losses is equal to or

greater than the carrying amount of its investment in the entity

concerned, the investment is reduced to zero and recognition

of the Group’s share of future losses is discontinued, unless

the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations to

bear a portion of future losses or to make payments on behalf

of the associate.

This exemption, provided for in paragraph 18 of IAS 28, is used

on a case-by-case basis when the value of an investment in a

company over which the Group exercises significant influence

is determined on the basis of participatory contracts (see

Note 8.2).

4.2 Business combinations and other changes in scope of consolidation

Business combinations in which the Group acquires control of

one or more businesses are recognised using the purchase

method.

Business combinations carried out prior to 1 January 2010 are

recognised in accordance with the accounting principles used

to prepare the financial statements for the year ended

31  December 2009. Non-controlling interests (also known as

minority interests) are measured at the Group’s proportionate

share in the acquiree’s net revalued assets, while adjustments

to contingent consideration are treated as an adjustment to

the cost of the combination.

Business combinations that took place after 1  January 2010

are recognised and measured in accordance with revised

IFRS 3. Consideration transferred (acquisition cost) is measured

at the acquisition-date fair value of the assets transferred,

liabilities incurred and equity interests issued by the buyer.

The acquiree’s identifiable assets and liabilities are generally

measured at fair value at the acquisition date. Costs directly

attributable to the business combination are expensed as

incurred.

Any excess of the consideration transferred over the Group’s

proportionate share in the net fair value of the acquiree’s

identifiable assets and liabilities is recognised as goodwill.

Non-controlling interests may be measured at fair value (full

goodwill method) on a case-by-case basis.

Goodwill is calculated at the date control is obtained and is

not adjusted after the end of the measurement period. No

additional goodwill is recognised on subsequent acquisitions

of non-controlling interests.

Acquisitions and disposals of non-controlling interests are

recognised directly in equity.

If the consideration transferred is lower than the Group’s

proportionate share in the net assets of the acquiree

measured at fair value, the difference is recognised directly in

profit or loss for the period.

The initial accounting for a business combination must be

completed within 12  months of the acquisition date. This

timeline applies to the measurement of identifiable assets and

liabilities, consideration transferred and non-controlling interests.

In principle, any adjustments made after the measurement

period affecting financial assets or liabilities are recognised in

profit or loss, unless they concern errors whose correction

leads to an adjustment of the purchase price allocation.

4.3 Intragroup transactions

All transactions and balances between fully consolidated companies and all intragroup income and expenses are eliminated in full.

Losses resulting from the impairment of an asset transferred in an intragroup transaction are not eliminated.

4.4 Foreign currency translation into the Group’s presentation currency

The functional currency of subsidiaries, in which the majority

of transactions are denominated, is their local currency.

Assets and liabilities of international operations – mainly

international subsidiaries and independent branches –

including goodwill and fair value adjustments recorded on

consolidation, are translated into euros, i.e., the Group’s

presentation currency, at the closing exchange rate.

Income and expenses of international operations are translated

at the exchange rate on the transaction date. For practical

reasons, the average exchange rate for the period is used as

the rate on the transaction date for currencies that have been

subject to only limited fluctuations during the period.

Translation differences between the exchange rates used to

translate assets and liabilities, and those used to translate

income and expenses are recognised separately in equity as a

translation adjustment.
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4.5 Consolidated companies and percentage of voting rights

Company

Consolidation

method Country/City Business

30.06.2022 31.12.2021

%

rights

%

interest

%

rights

%

interest

1. STRATEGIC SUBSIDIARIES

CNP Assurances Full France/Paris Insurance 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%

CNP Caution Full France/Paris Insurance 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%

Arial CNP Assurances

Equity method

France/

Mons-en-Barœul Insurance 40.00% 40.00% 40.00% 40.00%

MFPrévoyance S.A. Full France/Paris Insurance 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%

Assuristance Equity method France/Paris Insurance 66.00% 66.00% 66.00% 66.00%

Filassistance International Equity method France/Paris Insurance 66.00% 66.00% 66.00% 66.00%

CNP Assurances Compañia de Seguros

Full

Argentina/

Buenos Aires Insurance 76.47% 76.47% 76.47% 76.47%

CNP S.A. de Capitalización y Ahorro p/ 

fines determinados Full

Argentina/

Buenos Aires Insurance 65.38% 50.00% 65.38% 50.00%

CNP Assurances Latam Holding Ltda Full Brazil/Brasilia Holding co. 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%

CREDICOOP Compañia de Seguros 

de Retiro S.A.
(1) Equity method

Argentina/

Buenos Aires Insurance 29.82% 29.82%

Provincia Seguros de Vida S.A.
(1)

Equity method

Argentina/

Buenos Aires Insurance 40.00% 40.00%

CNP Seguros Holding Brasil S.A. Full Brazil/Brasilia Holding co. 51.75% 51.75% 51.75% 51.75%

CNP Participações Securitarias Brasil Ltda Full Brazil/Brasilia Holding co. 100.00% 51.75% 100.00% 51.75%

Caixa Seguradora S.A. Full Brazil/Brasilia Insurance 100.00% 51.75% 100.00% 51.75%

CNP Capitalização S.A. Full Brazil/Brasilia Savings 51.00% 26.39% 51.00% 26.39%

CNP Consórcio S.A. Administradora de 

Consórcios
(2) Full Brazil/Brasilia Other 100.00% 51.75% 100.00% 51.75%

Youse Tecnologia e Assistencia EM 

Seguros Ltda
(3) Full Brazil/Brasilia Other 100.00% 51.75% 100.00% 51.75%

Caixa Seguradora Especializada EM 

Saúde S.A. Full Brazil/São Paulo Insurance 100.00% 51.75% 100.00% 51.75%

Companhia de Seguros Previdencia 

Do Sul-Previsul Full Brazil/São Paulo Insurance 100.00% 51.75% 100.00% 51.75%

Wiz Soluçoes e Corretagem de Seguros S.A. Equity method Brazil/Brasilia Brokerage 25.00% 12.94% 25.00% 12.94%

Odonto Empresas Convênios Dentários Ltda Full Brazil/São Paulo Insurance 100.00% 51.75% 100.00% 51.75%

CNP Seguros Participações em Saúde Ltda
(4)

Full Brazil/Brasilia Holding co. 100.00% 51.75% 100.00% 51.75%

CNP UniCredit Vita Full Italy/Milan Insurance 57.50% 57.50% 57.50% 57.50%

CNP Vita Assicurazione Full Italy/Milan Insurance 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%

CNP Vita Assicura Full Italy/Milan Insurance 51.00% 51.00% 51.00% 51.00%

CNP Partners Full Spain/Madrid Insurance 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%

Montparvie V Full France/Paris Holding co. 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%

CNP Cyprus Insurance Holdings Full Cyprus/Nicosia Insurance 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%

CNP Cyprus Properties Full Cyprus/Nicosia Insurance 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%

CNP Cyprus Tower Ltd Full Cyprus/Nicosia Insurance 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%

CNP Zois Full Greece/Athens Insurance 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%

CNP Praktoriaki Full Greece/Athens Insurance 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%

CNP Cyprialife Full Cyprus/Nicosia Insurance 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%



CNP Assurances — 2022 Interim Financial Report 33

2
CNP Assurances Interim Consolidated Financial Statements six months ended 30 June 2022

First-half 2022 consolidated financial statements

Company

Consolidation

method Country/City Business

30.06.2022 31.12.2021

%

rights

%

interest

%

rights

%

interest

CNP Asfalistiki Full Cyprus/Nicosia Insurance 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%

CNP Luxembourg Full Luxembourg Insurance 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%

CNP Santander Insurance Life Ltd Full Ireland/Dublin Insurance 51.00% 51.00% 51.00% 51.00%

CNP Santander Insurance Europe Ltd Full Ireland/Dublin Insurance 51.00% 51.00% 51.00% 51.00%

CNP Santander Insurance Services 

Ireland Ltd Full Ireland/Dublin Insurance 51.00% 51.00% 51.00% 51.00%

CNP Europe Life Full Ireland/Dublin Insurance 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%

Sogestop K Full France/Paris Holding co. 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%

Holding XS1 S.A. Full Brazil/Brasilia Holding co. 51.00% 40.00% 51.00% 40.00%

XS5 Administradora de consorcios S.A. Equity method Brazil/Brasilia Other 50.01% 25.00% 50.01% 25.00%

XS2 Vida e Previdência S.A. Full Brazil/Brasilia Insurance 100.00% 40.00% 100.00% 40.00%

Caixa Vida e Previdência Full Brazil/Brasilia Insurance 100.00% 40.00% 100.00% 40.00%

CNP Assurances Participações Ltda Full Brazil/Brasilia Holding co. 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%

2. MUTUAL FUND UNITS

Univers CNP 1 FCP Full France/Paris Mutual fund 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%

CNP Ostrum ISR Obli 12 Mois Full France/Paris Mutual fund 98.32% 98.32% 98.59% 98.59%

CNP Assur Trésorerie Plus Full France/Paris Mutual fund 98.12% 98.12% 98.12% 98.12%

Ecureuil Profil 90 Full France/Paris Mutual fund 56.69% 56.69% 56.86% 56.86%

Vivaccio ISR actions Full France/Paris Mutual fund 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%

OPCVM Caixa Seguradora S.A. Full Brazil/Brasilia Mutual fund 100.00% 51.75% 100.00% 51.75%

OPCVM CNP Capitalização S.A.
(5)

Full Brazil/Brasilia Mutual fund 100.00% 26.39% 100.00% 26.39%

OPCVM Caixa Vida e Previdência Full Brazil/Brasilia Mutual fund 100.00% 40.00% 100.00% 40.00%

OPCVM CNP Consórcio S.A.
(6)

Full Brazil/Brasilia Mutual fund 100.00% 51.75% 100.00% 51.75%

OPCVM Holding Caixa Seguros Holding S.A. Full Brazil/Brasilia Mutual fund 100.00% 51.75% 100.00% 51.75%

3. PROPERTY COMPANIES AND OTHERS

AEP3 SCI Full France/Paris Real estate 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%

CIMO Full France/Paris Real estate 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%

AEP4 SCI Full France/Paris Real estate 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%

SICAC Full France/Paris Real estate 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%

CNP Immobilier Full France/Paris Real estate 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%

Issy Coeur de Ville (ICV) Full France/Paris Real estate 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%

Assurimmeuble Full France/Paris Real estate 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%

OPCI MTP Invest Full France/Paris Real estate 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%

OPCI AEW Imcom 1 Full France/Paris Real estate 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%

OPCI AEP247 Full France/Paris Real estate 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%

LBP Actifs Immo Full France/Paris Real estate 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%

SAS Alleray Full France/Paris Real estate 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%

OPCI Raspail Full France/Paris Real estate 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%

Outlet Invest Full France/Paris Real estate 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%

SCP Lamartine Euros
(1)

Full France/Paris Real estate 100.00% 100.00%

SCP Lamartine Monitoring Holding
(1)

Full France/Paris Real estate 100.00% 100.00%

SCI Lamartine
(1)

Full France/Paris Real estate 85.00% 85.00%
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Company

Consolidation

method Country/City Business

30.06.2022 31.12.2021

%

rights

%

interest

%

rights

%

interest

Fundo De Investimento Imobiliario Renda 

Corporativa Angico – FII Full

Brazil/

São Paulo Real estate 100.00% 48.81% 100.00% 48.81%

Assurbail Patrimoine Full France/Paris Real estate 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%

Ecureuil Vie Développement Equity method France/Paris Brokerage 49.00% 49.00% 49.00% 49.00%

Coentreprise de Transport d’Électricité
(7)

FV France/Paris Energy 20.00% 20.00% 20.00% 20.00%

Infra-Invest Full Luxembourg Infrastructure 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%

Infra-Invest Holding Full France/Paris Infrastructure 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%

Infra-Invest France Full France/Paris Infrastructure 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%

Holding d’Infrastructures Gazières 

(sub scope) Equity method France/Paris Energy 53.00% 53.00% 53.00% 53.00%

(1) Companies consolidated for the first time

(2) Caixa Consórcios S.A. Administradora de Consórcios is now called CNP Consórcio S.A. Administradora de Consórcios

(3) Caixa Seguros Assessoria e Consultoria Ltda is now called Youse Tecnologia e Assistencia EM Seguros Ltda

(4) Caixa Seguros Participações em Saúde Ltda is now called CNP Seguros Participações em Saúde Ltda

(5) OPCVM Caixa Capitalização S.A. is now called OPCVM CNP Capitalização S.A.

(6) OPCVM Caixa Consórcios is now called OPCVM CNP Consórcio S.A.

(7) The investment in Coentreprise de Transport d’Électricité (CTE) is mainly in representation of participatory contracts. For this reason, the Group has

chosen to use the exemption from applying the equity method provided for in paragraph 18 of IAS 28 and to measure the CTE shares at fair value

through profit or loss
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Analysis of the main components of the balance sheet

NOTE 5 Equity

Components of equity

Equity includes share capital, retained earnings, unrealised

gains and losses from remeasurement at fair value of

available-for-sale financial assets net of tax and shadow

accounting adjustments, adjustments to the capitalisation

reserve and subordinated debt instruments classified in equity

due to the discretionary nature of interest payments (see

Note 5.4).

Capital management

Under European insurance directives, the Group is required to

comply with certain Minimum Capital Requirements at the

level of the Company and of each of its European insurance

subsidiaries, as well as at the consolidated level.

At 30 June 2022, the insurance subsidiaries and the Group as

a whole complied with these minimum Solvency Capital

Requirements.

Compliance with these requirements is regularly monitored,

primarily through the Own Risk and Solvency Assessments

(ORSA) conducted at Group level and at the level of the

insurance subsidiaries in accordance with Solvency  II. This

information and the solvency capital calculations are reported

to France’s insurance supervisor (Autorité de Contrôle

Prudentiel et de Résolution – ACPR).

Treasury shares

The Group may acquire treasury shares via the liquidity

contract set up for the purpose of stabilising the CNP Asrances

share price or allocating shares under employee share grant

plans (see Note  15.2.2). Treasury shares are recorded as a

deduction from equity in the IFRS accounts.

5.1 Ownership structure

Shareholder Number of shares % interest

La Banque Postale* 686,244,403 99.94%

CNP Assurances (treasury shares) 374,074 0.06%

TOTAL 686,618,477 100.00%

* 99.94% ownership following the success of the simplified tender offer initiated by La Banque Postale

5.2 Number of shares

Issued capital

Ordinary shares

30.06.2022 31.12.2021

Number of shares outstanding at the beginning of the period 686,618,477 686,618,477

Shares issued during the period 0 0

Number of shares outstanding at the end of the period 686,618,477 686,618,477
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5.3 Undated subordinated notes reclassified in equity

Subordinated notes for which the contractual clauses do not

stipulate any obligation to repay the nominal amount or

pay  any compensation are classified as equity instruments.

All  other dated and undated debt instruments, especially

those with a repayment schedule, are classified as financing

liabilities in accordance with IAS 32.

(In € millions) Issuance date

30.06.2022

Interest rate Currency Amount

Subordinated notes (attributable 

to owners of the parent) 1,881.3

CNP Assurances June 2004 Tec 10 +10 bps, capped at 9% € 300.0

March 2005 6.50% until March 2008, then 3% +22.5% times 10-year EUR CMS € 225.0

March 2005

6.25% until 2009, then 4 times (10-year EUR CMS – 2-year EUR 

CMS), 9% cap and 2.75% floor € 23.8

June 2005 7% until June 2010, then 10-year CMS +30 bps € 75.0

May 2006

5.25% until 16 May 2036, then 3-month Euribor +185 bps 

(including 100 bps step-up at call date) € 160.0

December 2006

3-month Euribor +95 bps until 20 December 2026, 

then 3-month Euribor +195 bps € 108.0

November 2014

4% until November 2024, then reset at the 5-year fixed 

swap rate +410 bps € 493.6

June 2018

4.75% until 2028, then reset at the 5-year fixed 

swap rate +391.4 bps € 496.0

TOTAL 1,881.3

(In € millions) Issuance date

31.12.2021

Interest rate Currency Amount

Subordinated notes (attributable 

to owners of the parent) 1,881.3

CNP Assurances June 2004 Tec 10 +10 bps, capped at 9% € 300.0

March 2005 6.50% until March 2008, then 3% +22.5% times 10-year EUR CMS € 225.0

March 2005

6.25% until 2009, then 4 times (10-year EUR CMS – 2-year EUR 

CMS), 9% cap and 2.75% floor € 23.8

June 2005 7% until June 2010, then 10-year CMS +30 bps € 75.0

May 2006

5.25% until 16 May 2036, then 3-month Euribor +185 bps 

(including 100 bps step-up at call date) € 160.0

December 2006

3-month Euribor +95 bps until 20 December 2026, 

then 3-month Euribor +195 bps € 108.0

November 2014

4% until November 2024, then reset at the 5-year fixed 

swap rate +410 bps € 493.6

June 2018

4.75% until 2028, then reset at the 5-year fixed 

swap rate +391.4 bps € 496.0

TOTAL 1,881.3
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NOTE 6 Intangible assets

6.1 Intangible assets by category

(In € millions)

30.06.2022

Cost Amortisation Impairment Reversals Carrying amount

Goodwill 618.5 0.0 (410.9) 0.0 207.6

Value of In-Force business 822.1 (183.0) (139.4) 0.0 499.7

Carrying amount of distribution agreements 3,968.4 (362.2) 0.0 0.0 3,606.2

Software 423.7 (316.2) 0.0 0.0 107.5

Internally-developed software 179.4 (115.5) 0.0 0.0 63.9

Other software 244.3 (200.7) 0.0 0.0 43.5

Other 19.4 (13.7) (0.1) 0.0 5.7

TOTAL 5,852.0 (875.1) (550.3) 0.0 4,426.6

(In € millions)

31.12.2021

Cost Amortisation Impairment Reversals Carrying amount

Goodwill 598.3 0.0 (408.4) 0.0 189.9

Value of In-Force business 847.7 (156.6) (158.8) 0.0 532.3

Carrying amount of distribution agreements 3,464.8 (260.5) 0.0 0.0 3,204.4

Software 405.8 (296.8) 0.0 0.0 109.0

Internally-developed software 171.2 (107.7) 0.0 0.0 63.5

Other software 234.6 (189.1) 0.0 0.0 45.4

Other 24.4 (14.3) (0.1) 0.0 10.1

TOTAL 5,341.0 (728.1) (567.3) 0.0 4,045.6

6.2 Goodwill

Goodwill is equal to the difference between the acquisition

cost to the buyer and the fair value of the corresponding

identifiable assets and liabilities. Negative goodwill is

recognised directly in profit or loss.

Positive goodwill is:

• recognised in intangible assets when it arises on the

acquisition of entities consolidated by the full consolidation

method;

• included in investments accounted for using the equity

method when it arises on the acquisition of an entity

accounted for using the equity method;

• recognised in the local currency of the acquiree and

translated into euros at the closing exchange rate when it

arises on the acquisition of an international entity (outside

the eurozone).

For impairment testing purposes, goodwill recognised when

control is obtained is allocated to cash-generating units

(CGUs) or groups of CGUs likely to benefit from the synergies

developed within the scope of the business combination

resulting from the acquisition. A CGU is defined as the smallest

group of identifiable assets that generates cash inflows that

are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or

groups of assets. The Group identifies CGUs by entity or group

of similar entities.

When goodwill is positive, it is stated in the balance sheet at

cost less any accumulated impairment losses. It is no longer

amortised but tested for impairment:

• each year on the same date, usually close to the reporting

date; or

• more frequently if events or changing market conditions

indicate that it may be impaired since it was last tested for

impairment.

An impairment loss is recognised if the recoverable amount of

the CGU to which the goodwill has been allocated is less than

its carrying amount. The recoverable amount is defined as the

higher of its fair value less costs to sell and value in use.

Value in use is generally calculated by the Group as the

present value of expected future cash flows from existing

portfolios and new business. Projected future revenues are

estimated by taking the embedded Value of In-Force

insurance policies and financial instruments, and the Value of

New Business.
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Expected future cash flows are based on the assumption that

the business will continue over the long-term and that

relations with banking partners will be pursued beyond the

renewal date of current agreements, as well as on forecasts

that have been validated by the Board of Directors and

extrapolated in line with the growth rates generally used

within the industry for the businesses concerned, and using

conservatively estimated discount rates in line with the

weighted average cost of capital. The terminal values of

subsidiaries do not assume growth to infinity.

When preparing interim financial statements, the Group

performs impairment tests if any single indicator of

impairment exceeds the threshold above which an impairment

loss is deemed to have occurred.

The Group uses the following indicators proposed under

IAS 36 that have been tailored to acquisitions carried out in the

insurance sector:

Internal indicators:

• material deterioration in the actual versus budgeted operating

results of the CGU;

• prolonged, material deterioration in the value of new business;

• the amount of funds required during and after the

acquisition of the CGU in order to keep the business going

is considerably higher than initially budgeted for;

• sharp deterioration in the volume of In-Force business (over

at least a two-year period).

External indicators:

• local regulatory developments likely to adversely impact

the value of the CGU;

• significant economic developments likely to lead to a sharp,

prolonged fall in investment yields.

6.2.1 Goodwill by company

(In € millions) Original goodwill

Net goodwill at

30.06.2022

Net goodwill at

31.12.2021

Groupe CNP Seguros Holding 389.9 117.2 100.7

CNP UniCredit Vita 366.5 0.0 0.0

CNP Partners 7.2 0.0 0.0

CNP Cyprus Insurance holdings 81.6 34.8 34.8

CNP Santander Insurance 54.4 54.4 54.4

SCI Lamartine 1.3 1.3

TOTAL 900.9 207.6 189.9

At 30 June 2022, there were no indications of impairment.

6.2.2 Changes in goodwill for the period

(In € millions) 30.06.2022 31.12.2021

Carrying amount at the beginning of the period 189.9 188.9

Goodwill recognised during the period
(1)

1.3 0.0

Translation adjustments on gross goodwill
(2)

16.5 1.0

Other movements 0.0 0.0

Impairment losses recognised during the period 0.0 0.0

Translation adjustment on movements during the period 0.0 0.0

Carrying amount at the end of the period 207.6 189.9

(1) Acquisition of 85% of SCI Lamartine

(2) Translation adjustments on goodwill for the Brazilian companies CNP Seguradora and Previsul
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6.3 Value of In-Force business and distribution agreements

The fair value of insurance contracts and financial instruments

with a discretionary participation feature acquired in a

business combination or a separate transaction is split into two

components, as follows:

• a liability measured in accordance with the Group’s

accounting policies for insurance contracts and financial

instruments with a discretionary participation feature;

• an intangible asset (“Value of In-Force business”) representing

the difference between the fair value of these contracts

and the amount described above.

The Value of In-Force business corresponding to purchased

insurance portfolios is generally amortised by the effective

interest method over the portfolios’ remaining life.

The value of a distribution agreement represents the future

cash flows expected to result from new business relating to a

partner network falling within the scope of such an agreement.

These intangible assets are estimated based on the terms

and conditions specific to each agreement, and are amortised

over the term of the agreement taking into account a residual

value where appropriate.

6.3.1 Value of In-Force business

(In € millions) Original value

Carrying amount

at 30.06.2022

Carrying amount

at 31.12.2021

Groupe CNP Seguros Holding 123.5 1.0 1.0

CNP UniCredit Vita 175.3 0.0 0.0

CNP Partners 24.0 0.0 0.4

CNP Assurances Compañia de Seguros 0.9 0.0 0.0

CNP Cyprus Insurance holdings 44.4 6.9 7.2

MFPrévoyance S.A. 8.3 0.0 0.0

CNP Santander Insurance 14.7 0.3 0.4

Groupe CNP Vita Assicura 523.4 491.5 523.4

TOTAL 914.4 499.7 532.3

6.3.2 Changes in the Value of In-Force business

(In € millions) 30.06.2022 31.12.2021

Gross amount at the beginning of the period 847.7 325.6

Newly-consolidated companies 0.0 523.4

Translation adjustments 7.9 0.5

Other movements 0.0 (1.8)

Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations (33.5) 0.0

Gross amount at the end of the period 822.1 847.7

Accumulated amortisation and impairment at the beginning of the period (315.4) (313.4)

Translation adjustments (7.7) (0.5)

Amortisation for the period (32.5) (2.0)

Other movements 0.0 0.5

Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations 33.2 0.0

Accumulated amortisation and impairment at the end of the period (322.4) (315.3)

CARRYING AMOUNT AT THE END OF THE PERIOD 499.7 532.3
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6.3.3 Distribution agreements

The value of distribution agreements (VDA) is recognised in

intangible assets at cost less accumulated amortisation and

impairment. In addition to being amortised, these assets are

tested for impairment:

• for the preparation of the interim and annual financial

statements;

• more frequently if events or changing market conditions

indicate that it may be impaired since it was last tested for

impairment.

An impairment loss is recognised if the VDA’s value in use is

lower than its carrying amount.

Value in use is generally calculated as the discounted present

value of expected future cash flows from new business.

Expected future cash flows are based on the assumption that

the business will continue over the long-term and that

relations with banking partners will be pursued over the life of

the current agreements. Forecast cash flows validated by the

Board of Directors are projected using the growth rates

generally applied by the market for the businesses concerned

and discount rates aligned with the weighted average cost of

capital.

(In € millions) 30.06.2022 31.12.2021

Gross amount at the beginning of the period 3,464.8 3,434.2

Translation adjustments 503.5 30.6

Other movements 0.0 0.0

Gross amount at the end of the period 3,968.4 3,464.8

Accumulated amortisation and impairment at the beginning of the period (260.5) (118.1)

Amortisation for the period (79.5) (141.1)

Translation adjustments (22.2) (1.3)

Other movements 0.0 0.0

Accumulated amortisation and impairment at the end of the period (362.2) (260.5)

CARRYING AMOUNT AT THE END OF THE PERIOD 3,606.2 3,204.4

At 30 June 2022, no impairment losses were recorded on VDAs.

XS2 Vida e Previdência S.A.

The value of the distribution agreement was initially

recognised in intangible assets at cost for €3,579  million, in

2021. It is being amortised by the straight-line method over

the 25-year life of the agreement (ending in February 2046). At

30 June 2022, its net carrying amount was €3,364 million.

At 30  June 2022, expected future cash flows were derived

from business projections for the period 2022-2031. Beyond

2031, growth assumptions were determined on a product-by-

product basis.

CNP Santander Insurance

The gross value of the distribution agreement was initially

recognised at cost for €387 million and is being amortised by

the straight-line method over the 20-year life of the

agreement (2015-2034). At 30  June 2022, its net carrying

amount was €242 million.

The asset’s value in use is calculated based on its net present

value (NPV) extrapolated over the remaining life of the

distribution agreement (i.e., until 2034) without taking into

account any growth assumptions. The comparative net book

value includes recognised earn-out payments.
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NOTE 7 Insurance investments

Classification

Financial assets are allocated among the following four

categories, based on the type of portfolio, the type of financial

assets, the specific features of certain financial assets and

prioritised application of the criteria defining each category:

• financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,

corresponding to assets held for trading and assets

designated at the outset as being at fair value through profit

or loss in accordance with the fair value option. Financial

assets allocated to this category include assets backing

unit-linked liabilities, assets with an embedded derivative

that is separable from the host contract, assets of

consolidated mutual funds and derivative instruments;

• held-to-maturity investments, corresponding to fixed-

income securities that the Group has the positive intention

and ability to hold to maturity. This classification is applied

restrictively to certain bonds, held mainly by the Group’s

Brazilian subsidiary;

• loans and receivables, corresponding to non-derivative

financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that

are not quoted in an active market, other than assets

classified as held for trading or available-for-sale;

• available-for-sale financial assets, corresponding to assets

that are not held with the firm intention of being sold but

which the Group may decide to sell, for example to meet its

liquidity needs. This classification is applied to assets not

classified in any of the above three categories.

Recognition

Financial assets are recognised in the balance sheet when the

Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the

instrument. Regular way purchases and sales of financial

assets are recorded on the transaction date.

Financial assets are initially recognised at fair value. The

carrying amount includes directly attributable transaction

costs, except in the case of financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss.

Derecognition

A financial asset is derecognised when the contractual rights

to the cash flows from the financial asset expire or the asset is

transferred in a transaction that transfers substantially all the

risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset.

Valuation method

Available-for-sale financial assets and financial assets at fair

value through profit or loss are subsequently measured at fair

value.

Changes in fair value of available-for-sale financial assets are

recognised in other comprehensive income, taking into

account the impact on liabilities arising from insurance

contracts and financial instruments with a discretionary

participation feature (DPF) (in accordance with the shadow

accounting principle, see Note 8.2) and the deferred tax effect.

Changes in fair value of financial assets at fair value through

profit or loss are recognised directly in profit or loss, taking

into account the impact on liabilities arising from insurance

contracts and financial instruments with DPF (in accordance

with the shadow accounting principle, see Note  8.2) and the

deferred tax effect.

Loans and receivables and held-to-maturity investments are

measured at amortised cost by the effective interest method.

Commissions and fees paid or received, directly attributable

transaction costs, and all other premiums or discounts are

recognised in the income statement over the expected life of

the instrument.

Mutual funds and non-trading property companies are fully

consolidated (in accordance with IFRS 10) or accounted for by

the equity method (in accordance with IAS  28). The level of

control of mutual funds is assessed separately for each fund

based on the following criteria:

• the relationship between the principal and the agent;

• the Group’s power over the fund manager;

• the Group’s exposure to variable returns, as assessed by

applying a specific threshold.

The item “Liabilities towards holders of units in controlled

mutual funds” consists of non-controlling interests in fully

consolidated mutual funds. Units in mutual funds are

measured using the fund’s most recently published net asset

value. The underlying financial assets are reported in the

consolidated balance sheet under “Insurance investments”

based on their contribution to the fund’s net asset value.

The fair value of financial instruments for which there is no

active market is estimated using a valuation technique.

Valuation techniques include using recent arm’s length market

transactions between knowledgeable, willing parties, if

available, reference to the current fair value of another

instrument that is substantially the same, discounted cash

flow analysis and option pricing models.
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Impairment

Financial assets other than those measured at fair value

through profit or loss are tested for impairment at each

reporting date. A financial asset has been impaired if there is

objective evidence of impairment based on one or a number

of events whose impact on the asset’s estimated future cash

flows may be reliably determined.

Assets measured at amortised cost and debt 

instruments available for sale

For debt instruments held to maturity or available for sale, an

impairment loss related to their fair value is recognised in the

income statement if future cash flows are unlikely to be

entirely recoverable due to the existence of one or more

objective indicators of impairment.

However, downgrading by a rating agency or widening credit

spreads do not in themselves constitute objective evidence of

impairment. One or a combination of the following factors

would constitute objective evidence of impairment:

• a credit event as defined by the International Swaps and

Derivatives Association (ISDA), namely bankruptcy of the

entity in question, failure to pay, or a reorganisation;

• knowledge of material financial difficulties being

experienced by the counterparty that amount to a

recognised risk, even in instances where the counterparty

has not actually defaulted;

• the existence of certain facilities that would not have been

granted to the counterparty in the absence of financial

difficulties.

Available-for-sale equity instruments

At each reporting date, available-for-sale equity instruments

are reviewed to determine whether there is any objective

evidence that they are impaired. This is considered to be the

case when there is:

• a prolonged decline in fair value: the market price is less

than the average carrying amount over the three years

preceding the reporting date; or

• a significant decline in fair value: the market price at the

reporting date represents less than 50% of the average

carrying amount.

When objective evidence of impairment is detected, the

cumulative unrealised loss previously recorded directly in

equity is recognised in profit or loss.

Moreover, in all cases where these thresholds have not been

exceeded but the market price represents less than 70% of

the average carrying amount over the previous six months, the

Group systematically tests all equity instruments on an asset-

by-asset basis to ascertain whether or not an impairment loss

needs to be recognised.

This approach is based on both the materiality of the decline

in fair value and the intrinsic underlying features of the

valuation for each asset.

Any subsequent decline in fair value is recognised in profit or

loss as an impairment expense.

A similar method is employed for unlisted variable-income

securities.

Reversals of impairment losses

Available-for-sale financial assets

Impairment losses recognised in the income statement on

available-for-sale equity instruments are reversed through

profit or loss when the instrument is derecognised.

If the fair value of an available-for-sale debt instrument

increases in a subsequent period due to new circumstances,

e.g., an improvement in the counterparty’s credit rating, the

impairment loss is reversed in profit or loss.

Loans and receivables, held-to-maturity investments

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss

decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an

event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the

previously recognised impairment loss is reversed by

adjusting the allowance account, provided that the reversal

does not result in a carrying amount of the financial asset that

exceeds what the amortised cost would have been had the

impairment not been recognised at the date the impairment is

reversed. The impairment loss is reversed in profit or loss.

Structured entities

CNP Assurances’ business involves investing in different types

of financial assets both in policyholder and own-fund

portfolios as part of asset allocation and financial risk

diversification strategies.

Under IFRS 12, structured entities are entities that have been

designed so that voting or similar rights are not the dominant

factor in deciding who controls the entity. In the Group’s case,

mutual funds and asset-backed security funds fulfil the criteria

for classification as structured entities.

Details of CNP  Assurances’ investments in non-consolidated

structured entities are disclosed in Note  7.2.4 of the annual

financial statements, in compliance with paragraph  26 of

IFRS  12 (“An entity shall disclose qualitative and quantitative

information about its interests in unconsolidated structured

entities, including, but not limited to, the nature, purpose, size

and activities of the structured entity and how the structured

entity is financed”).
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7.1 Investment property

Investment property is property (land or building) held to earn

rentals or for capital appreciation or both, rather than for use in

the production or supply of goods or services or for

administrative purposes, or for sale in the ordinary course of

business.

The Group has elected to measure investment property using

the cost model, as allowed by IAS  40, except for properties

held in unit-linked portfolios which are measured at fair value.

Details of the fair values of properties measured using the cost

model are also disclosed in these notes to the financial

statements. Fair value corresponds to the probable realisable

value of properties and shares in unlisted property companies.

It is determined on the basis of five-year valuations

performed by a qualified expert recognised by the ACPR. In

the period between two five-year valuations, fair value is

estimated at each year-end and the amounts obtained are

certified by a qualified expert.

Impairment

At the end of each reporting period, properties are assessed to

determine whether there is any indication that they may be

impaired. One such indicator is a loss of over 20% of the

building’s value measured against cost. If there is evidence of

impairment, CNP  Assurances estimates the recoverable

amount of the building concerned.

The recoverable amount of a property is the higher of its value

in use and its market price less costs to sell, as determined by

annual independent valuations of the Group’s entire property

portfolio.

The purpose of this note is to show depreciation and

impairment losses recognised/reversed during the period

through profit or loss in respect of property and the captions

impacted by the movements.

It presents:

• the gross carrying amount and accumulated depreciation

(aggregated with accumulated impairment losses) at the

beginning and end of the period;

• a reconciliation of the carrying amounts of investment

property at the beginning and end of the period, showing

(i)  additions; (ii)  disposals; (iii)  depreciation; (iv)  impairment

losses recognised and reversed during the period; (v)  the

net exchange differences arising on the translation of the

financial statements into a different presentation currency,

and on translation of an international transaction into the

presentation currency of the reporting entity; (vi)  transfers

to and from inventories and owner-occupied property and

(vii) other changes;

• the fair value of investment properties held in unit-linked

portfolios.

Carrying amount of investment property

(In € millions) 30.06.2022 31.12.2021

Investment property measured by the cost model

Gross value 2,851.9 925.8

Accumulated depreciation (259.7) (246.2)

Accumulated impairment losses (9.7) (6.4)

Carrying amount 2,582.5 673.2

Investment property measured by the fair value model

Gross value 2,385.7 2,049.7

TOTAL INVESTMENT PROPERTY 4,968.2 2,722.9
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Investment property at amortised cost

(In € millions) 30.06.2022 31.12.2021

Carrying amount at the beginning of the period 673.2 705.7

Acquisitions 22.5 58.3

Post-acquisition costs included in the carrying amount of property 0.0 0.0

Properties acquired through business combinations 1,919.8 0.0

Disposals (14.6) (77.1)

Depreciation for the period (11.0) (15.2)

Impairment losses recognised during the period (3.4) (3.5)

Impairment losses reversed during the period 0.1 1.1

Translation adjustments 2.9 0.2

Other movements 0.0 3.7

Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations (6.9) 0.0

CARRYING AMOUNT AT THE END OF THE PERIOD 2,582.5 673.2

Investment property measured by the fair value model

(In € millions) 30.06.2022 31.12.2021

Carrying amount at the beginning of the period 2,049.7 1,705.2

Acquisitions 294.0 365.9

Post-acquisition costs included in the carrying amount of property 0.0 0.0

Properties acquired through business combinations 0.0 0.0

Disposals (5.8) (35.5)

Net gains arising from remeasurement at fair value 47.7 14.1

Translation adjustments 0.0 0.0

Other movements 0.0 0.0

CARRYING AMOUNT AT THE END OF THE PERIOD 2,385.7 2,049.7

As explained in the description of significant accounting policies, investment properties backing linked liabilities are measured at

fair value, while other investment properties are measured using the cost model.
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7.2 Investments by category

The following tables show the fair value of securities held by the Group, by category and intended holding period.

7.2.1 Investments at 30 June 2022

(In € millions) 30.06.2022 31.12.2021

Impairment

Carrying

amount Impairment

Carrying

amount

Assets at fair value 

through profit or loss

Fixed-rate bonds 10,886.2 10,228.8

Variable-rate bonds 28,222.1 25,078.2

TCNs (money market securities) 1,016.9 778.0

Equities 5,987.9 6,847.3

Investment funds 54,782.7 60,825.5

Share in non-trading property 

companies 1,705.7 1,690.9

Other (including lent securities 

and repos) 2,919.2 3,158.4

Total 105,520.8 108,607.1

Derivative instruments Derivative instruments 

(positive fair value) 3,589.4 1,467.5

Derivative instruments 

(negative fair value) (1,639.1) (1,704.5)

Total 1,950.3 (237.0)

Available-for-sale 

financial assets

Fixed-rate bonds (5.4) 145,776.6 (5.4) 168,265.8

Variable-rate bonds (1.0) 27,150.0 (14.1) 26,335.2

TCNs (money market securities) 0.0 6,112.7 0.0 3,478.8

Equities (1,717.0) 17,246.5 (1,706.3) 22,435.1

Investment funds (519.8) 55,080.3 (444.6) 64,966.0

Share in non-trading property 

companies (538.2) 11,495.5 (527.4) 11,133.4

Non-voting loan stock (5.0) 642.2 (5.0) 547.2

Other (including lent securities 

and repos) 0.0 25,987.0 0.0 29,247.6

Total (2,786.4) 289,490.9 (2,702.8) 326,409.1

Held-to-maturity 

investments

Fixed-rate bonds 0.0 0.0

Variable-rate bonds 91.7 73.9

Other (including lent securities 

and repos) 0.0 0.0

Total 91.7 73.9

Loans and receivables Loans and receivables (37.3) 4,091.7 (37.3) 4,159.7

Total (37.3) 4,091.7 (37.3) 4,159.7

Investment property Investment property at amortised cost (9.7) 2,582.5 (6.4) 673.2

Investment property measured 

by the fair value model 2,385.7 2,049.7

Total (9.7) 4,968.2 (6.4) 2,722.9

TOTAL (2,833.3) 406,113.5 (2,746.5) 441,735.7
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Traditional savings and unit-linked portfolios at fair value through profit 

or loss at 30 June 2022

(In € millions)

Carrying amount

TotalUnit-Linked

Traditional

savings

Fixed-rate bonds 5,914.9 4,971.3 10,886.2

Variable-rate bonds 22,955.3 5,266.8 28,222.1

TCNs (money market securities) 0.0 1,016.9 1,016.9

Equities 1,430.1 4,557.8 5,987.9

Investment funds 45,610.6 9,172.2 54,782.7

Shares in non-trading property companies and investment property
(1)

4,045.9 45.5 4,091.3

Other 2,859.7 59.6 2,919.2

TOTAL 82,816.4 25,090.1 107,906.4

(1) Investment properties and shares in non-trading property companies are reported together in an amount of €2,385.7 million

Derivative instruments with a positive fair value are recorded as assets and those with a negative fair value are recorded as liabilities.

Traditional savings and unit-linked portfolios at fair value through profit 

or loss at 31 December 2021

(In € millions)

Carrying amount

TotalUnit-Linked

Traditional

savings

Fixed-rate bonds 4,851.9 5,376.9 10,228.8

Variable-rate bonds 19,952.0 5,126.2 25,078.2

TCNs (money market securities) 0.0 778.0 778.0

Equities 1,770.2 5,077.1 6,847.3

Investment funds 51,019.4 9,806.1 60,825.5

Shares in non-trading property companies and investment property
(1)

3,699.9 40.8 3,740.6

Other 2,967.0 191.4 3,158.4

TOTAL 84,260.3 26,396.5 110,656.9

(1) Investment properties and shares in non-trading property companies are reported together in an amount of €2,049.7 million for 2021

Derivative instruments with a positive fair value are recorded as assets and those with a negative fair value are recorded as liabilities.

7.2.2 Reconciliation of insurance investments in the balance sheet to investments 

analysed in Note 7.2.1

(In € millions) 30.06.2022 31.12.2021

Analysis of investments 406,113.5 441,735.7

Balance sheet – Liabilities – Derivative instruments (negative fair value) (1,639.1) (1,704.5)

Balance sheet – Assets – Insurance investments 407,752.6 443,440.3

VARIANCE 0.0 0.0
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7.3 Measurement of assets recognised at fair value

A financial instrument is considered as traded in an active

market when quoted prices are readily and regularly available

from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing

service or regulatory agency and these prices represent

actual and regularly occurring market transactions conducted

on an arm’s length basis. The main criteria used in determining

whether or not a market is active is how recent the quoted

prices actually are as well as the liquidity of the securities

traded. The market in question will be considered inactive if

one or more of the following indicators is observed: a sharp

fall in the number of transactions, a major increase in settlement

costs or volatility, or a rapid widening in Z-spreads.

In the case of financial instruments whose price is not quoted

in an active market (i.e., no price is quoted or a price is quoted

but the market does not qualify as active, as is the case for

certain structured products), fair value prices are estimated

using valuation techniques. These are based on:

• prices not freely available provided upon demand by the

arrangers or pricing services, or prices provided by an

external agency that are freely available but where the

market on which the assets are traded is not always active;

• internal models that maximise the use of observable market

data to measure financial assets.

Structured product valuation principles

The aim of the valuation techniques is to obtain estimated

values that approximate the economic value of a position

using prices and rates corresponding to the underlying assets

or benchmark interest rates and other indices. The prices

quoted by the arrangers correspond to the estimated amount

that a buyer would be willing to pay to purchase the asset.

Actual prices could be significantly different from these

estimates, due to various factors such as credit spreads, market

liquidity, the size of the position, financing costs, and hedging

costs and risks.

The valuation techniques used:

• make maximum use of market inputs;

• incorporate all factors that market participants would

consider in setting a price; and

• are consistent with accepted Banks methodologies for

pricing financial instruments.

The prices established by the counterparties are obtained in

principle every month, in particular following the signature of a

liquidity letter. The valuations communicated by the counterparties

correspond to an economic value of the securities.

The CNP Assurances Group verifies the reliability of these data

from an evaluation whenever possible (estimated future

cash flows for example), or questions counterparties as to the

methodologies used if necessary. The values of the counterparties

examined so far have been confirmed by the CNP Assurances

Group, which ensures both the quality of the counterparty

valuation methods and the quality of the ratings of the issues

and the absence of a credit incident.

Fair value hierarchies

Financial instruments are classified in three categories based

on the fair value hierarchy, as follows:

Level 1: Financial instruments measured using 

quoted prices in active markets

The fair value of most financial instruments held by the Group

is determined based on the quoted market price, whenever

quoted prices are readily and regularly available and

represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions

conducted on an arm’s length basis. The active market for

such transactions is the market in which the most recent

prices were quoted along with the largest volumes of

transactions. The following financial assets are measured at

their quoted market price:

• equities, measured on the basis of quoted prices on their

reference market;

• mutual fund units, measured at their net asset value;

• bonds, EMTNs, BMTNs: for each instrument, the value is

determined based on the most recent quoted prices

available on the stock exchange, from brokers, trading

rooms or trading platforms, the ICMA Price Service (average

prices) or BGN (average prices excluding highs and lows),

taking into account liquidity factors in the choice of market;

• BTAN treasury notes, at the prices quoted under the

Banque de France’s centralised quotation system;

• derivatives listed on an organised market.

Level 2: Financial instruments measured by standard 

valuation techniques using mainly observable inputs

These include:

• certain structured products measured using a valuation

model and market parameters;

• derivative instruments purchased over-the-counter that are

measured using a valuation model and mainly market

parameters;

• TCN money-market securities other than BTANs that are no

longer listed and are measured based on the zero coupon

price curve plus a spread;

• investment property measured based on prices recorded

for similar recent transactions or the rental value of

equivalent-type properties;

• any other over-the-counter financial instruments.
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Structured products held by the Group consist of financial

instruments for which income is indexed to indices, baskets of

equities, hedge funds, interest rates and credits. They may

also comprise embedded derivatives that can modify the

structure of revenues or repayments.

The Group uses valuations of its complex products prepared

internally, or by an external valuer, acting as a delegate.

They  include structured products and derivative instruments

used for hedging purposes. Due to their complexity, the

valuation process involves using sophisticated models and

methods, generally based on a probabilistic approach.

Overall, these two product categories are valued using market

models and the market data required for each model at the

calculation date (see table below).

Structured products Models/Methods

Interest-rate linked structured notes 4-Factor Libor Market Model (LMM)

Hybrid Equity Black-FX Model

Hull-White One-Factor Model

Equity linked structured notes Dupire model

Heston model

Dupire hybrid equation – Hull-White One-Factor Model

Inflation-indexed complex structured products Jarrow-Yildirim model

Asset class Financial instruments Models/Methods

Interest rate derivatives Interest rate swaps Future cash flows discounted using bi-curve model

Swaps with an 

embedded option Black model

Caps/floors SABR smile model

Hull-White One-Factor Model (stochastic volatility)

CMS replication

Inflation derivatives Inflation swap Black model

SABR smile model

Credit derivatives CDS options Black-Scholes formula (Markit volatilities)

Equity derivatives Floors Heston model calibrated across the SX5E’s entire implicit 

volatility surface and Black-Scholes using historical volatility 

for the EMTXGC and QW1M funds

CAC and SX5E puts Black-Scholes model with volatility surface developed based 

on option prices quoted on Bloomberg

Currency derivatives JPY swaps (with currency 

option at each swaplet) FX Basket (FXBA) model with Black-Scholes (Reuters volatilities)

Funds Fund options (Quattro) Black Basket model with historical volatility

Level 3: Financial instruments measured using 

mainly unobservable inputs (heuristic data, 

statistical data, etc.)

These are defined as inputs based neither on observable

market transactions involving the same instrument at the

measurement date, nor on observable market data available

at the same date.

This category includes CNP Assurances’ investments in unlisted

companies and certain asset-backed securities.

Unlisted securities are measured using information not

available on an active market. The main valuation techniques

are the market multiples method, comparisons with recent

market transactions and the discounted dividends method,

corresponding to the techniques commonly used to manage

these instruments.

In addition, some complex structured securities, and for which

valuation is obtained through the counterparty, are classified

in this category.



CNP Assurances — 2022 Interim Financial Report 49

2
CNP Assurances Interim Consolidated Financial Statements six months ended 30 June 2022

First-half 2022 consolidated financial statements

7.3.1 Valuation methods at 30 June 2022

(In € millions)

Level 1:

last available

quotation of

assets quoted in

 an active

market

Level 2: estimated

market value using

valuation model

based on

observable market

inputs

Level 3: estimated

market value using

 valuation model

not based solely

on observable

market inputs Total

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss* 94,033.2 12,857.9 2,219.1 109,110.2

Available-for-sale financial assets 248,947.2 18,939.7 21,604.0 289,490.9

TOTAL FINANCIAL ASSETS 342,980.3 31,797.5 23,823.2 398,601.0

Investment property at amortised cost 0.0 3,772.2 0.0 3,772.2

Investment property measured by the fair 

value model 0.0 2,385.7 0.0 2,385.7

TOTAL INVESTMENT PROPERTY 0.0 6,157.9 0.0 6,157.9

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 0.0

Financial liabilities – financial instruments 

without DPF (excluding unit-linked) 537.8 0.0 0.0 537.8

Financial liabilities (linked liabilities) – 

financial instruments without DPF 2,802.7 0.0 0.0 2,802.7

Derivative financial instruments with a negative 

fair value 0.0 1,639.1 0.0 1,639.1

TOTAL FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 3,340.5 1,639.1 0.0 4,979.6

* Includes derivative financial instruments with a positive fair value

7.3.2 Valuation methods at 31 December 2021

(In € millions)

Level 1:

last available

quotation of

assets quoted in

an active market

Level 2: estimated

market value using

valuation model

based on observable

 market inputs

Level 3: estimated

market value using

valuation model

not based solely

on observable

market inputs Total

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss* 98,631.8 9,383.5 2,059.4 110,074.7

Available-for-sale financial assets 292,822.2 15,347.9 18,238.9 326,409.1

TOTAL FINANCIAL ASSETS 391,454.0 24,731.4 20,298.4 436,483.7

Investment property at amortised cost 0.0 1,860.2 0.0 1,860.2

Investment property measured by the fair 

value model 0.0 2,049.7 0.0 2,049.7

TOTAL INVESTMENT PROPERTY 0.0 3,910.0 0.0 3,910.0

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 0.0

Financial liabilities – financial instruments 

without DPF (excluding unit-linked) 480.7 0.0 0.0 480.7

Financial liabilities (linked liabilities) – 

financial instruments without DPF 3,234.6 0.0 0.0 3,234.6

Derivative financial instruments with a negative 

fair value 0.0 1,703.9 0.6 1,704.5

TOTAL FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 3,715.3 1,703.9 0.6 5,419.8

* Includes derivative financial instruments with a positive fair value

The Group’s derivative instruments are collateralised and the counterparty risk is therefore limited. In addition, the credit value

adjustment (“CVA”) is not material, due to the nature of the Group’s forward financial instruments and the calculation base.
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7.3.3 Reconciliation of movements for the period in securities measured using 

a valuation model not based solely on observable market inputs

(In € millions)

30.06.2022

Opening

 carrying

 amount

Newly-

consoli

dated

com-

panies

Acquisi-

tion Maturity

Transfers

to level 3

(additions)

Transfers

from

level 3

(disposals)

Impact of

 sales of

securities

 at fair

value

through

profit or

loss

Impact of

 sales of

available

-for-sale

financial

assets

Remea-

surement

 at fair

value

through

equity

Remea-

surement

 at fair

value

through

profit or

loss

Impair

ment

Trans-

lation

adjust-

ments

Closing

carrying

 amount

Financial assets at

fair value through

profit or loss 2,059.4 0.0 37.7 (7.9) 26.2 (72.1) (36.8) 0.0 0.0 212.7 0.0 0.0 2,219.1

Available-for-sale 

financial assets 18,238.9 0.0 4,225.9 (678.0) 343.4 (108.3) 0.0 (136.5) (270.0) 0.0 (12.8) 1.5 21,604.0

TOTAL 

FINANCIAL 

ASSETS 20,298.4 0.0 4,263.5 (685.9) 369.6 (180.3) (36.8) (136.5) (270.0) 212.7 (12.8) 1.5 23,823.2

Investment 

property 

measured by the 

fair value model 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Investment 

property at 

amortised cost 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

TOTAL 

INVESTMENT 

PROPERTY 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

TOTAL 

FINANCIAL 

LIABILITIES 0.6 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 (0.6) 0.0 0.0 0.0

(In € millions)

31.12.2021

Opening

 carrying

 amount

Newly-

consoli

dated

com-

panies

Acquisi-

tion Maturity

Transfers

to level 3

(additions)

Transfers

from

level 3

(disposals)

Impact of

 sales of

securities

 at fair

value

through

profit or

loss

Impact of

 sales of

available-

for-sale

financial

assets

Remea-

surement

 at fair

value

through

equity

Remea-

surement

 at fair

value

through

profit or

loss

Impair

ment

Trans-

lation

adjust-

ments

Closing

carrying

 amount

Financial assets at

fair value through

profit or loss 2,103.7 21.6 160.4 (156.1) 49.8 (17.7) (98.9) 0.0 0.0 (3.4) 0.0 0.0 2,059.4

Available-for-sale 

financial assets 11,005.9 3,685.8 4,324.8 (1,258.4) 0.0 (283.1) 0.0 (421.9) 1,177.1 0.0 8.7 0.1 18,238.9

TOTAL 

FINANCIAL 

ASSETS 13,109.6 3,707.4 4,485.3 (1,414.5) 49.8 (300.8) (98.9) (421.9) 1,177.1 (3.4) 8.7 0.1 20,298.4

Investment 

property 

measured by the 

fair value model 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Investment 

property at 

amortised cost 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

TOTAL 

INVESTMENT 

PROPERTY 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

TOTAL 

FINANCIAL 

LIABILITIES 0.0 0.6 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.6
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7.4 Derivative instruments

A derivative is a financial instrument or other contract within

the scope of IAS 39 with all three of the following characteristics:

(a) its value changes in response to the change in a specified

interest rate, financial instrument price, commodity price,

foreign exchange rate, index of prices or rates, credit

rating or credit index, or other variable (the “underlying”);

(b) it requires no initial net investment or an initial net investment

that is smaller than would be required for other types of

contracts that would be expected to have a similar response

to changes in market factors; and

(c) it is settled at a future date.

Derivative instruments are classified as financial assets or

liabilities at fair value through profit or loss except for instruments

designated as hedges whose effectiveness can be demonstrated.

Embedded derivatives are separated from their host contract

and recognised as derivative instruments when the following

three conditions are met:

• the economic characteristics and risks of the embedded

derivative are not closely related to the economic characteristics

and risks of the host contract;

• a separate instrument with the same terms as the embedded

derivative would meet the definition of a derivative;

• the hybrid (combined) contract is not measured at fair value

with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

If the Group is unable to measure the embedded derivative

separately either at acquisition or at a subsequent financial

reporting date, the entire combined contract is treated as a

financial asset or financial liability at fair value through profit or

loss.

The following table analyses derivative instruments recorded in assets (positive fair value) and in liabilities (negative fair value)

by maturity:

(In € millions)

30.06.2022

Due within 1 year Due in 1 to 5 years Due in 6 to 10 years Due in 11 to 15 years Due in ≥15 years Total

FV+ FV- FV+ FV- FV+ FV- FV+ FV- FV+ FV- FV+ FV-

Swap 1.3 (42.8) 12.6 (505.3) 165.4 (127.2) 24.4 (89.7) 69.4 (114.7) 273.0 (879.7)

Cap/floor 8.4 (107.2) 1,508.2 (314.4) 465.8 0.0 122.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 2,104.4 (421.6)

Equity 522.4 (81.1) 675.0 (256.7) 14.5 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 1,212.0 (337.8)

TOTAL 532.1 (231.1) 2,195.7 (1,076.5) 645.7 (127.2) 146.5 (89.7) 69.4 (114.7) 3,589.4 (1,639.1)

(In € millions)

31.12.2021

Due within 1 year Due in 1 to 5 years Due in 6 to 10 years Due in 11 to 15 years Due in ≥15 years Total

FV+ FV- FV+ FV- FV+ FV- FV+ FV- FV+ FV- FV+ FV-

Swap 3.1 (25.0) 9.5 (418.3) 60.1 (155.4) 28.0 (81.9) 46.4 (190.3) 147.1 (870.9)

Cap/floor 28.3 (22.6) 289.5 (140.6) 130.7 (16.4) 53.9 (26.9) 0.0 0.0 502.3 (206.5)

Equity 141.5 (73.4) 664.4 (553.6) 12.2 (0.1) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 818.2 (627.2)

TOTAL 172.9 (121.1) 963.4 (1,112.5) 203.0 (171.9) 81.9 (108.8) 46.4 (190.3) 1,467.5 (1,704.5)
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7.5 Derivative instruments qualifying for hedge accounting

Derivatives designated as hedging instruments are accounted

for in accordance with IAS 39 if they are part of a designated

hedging relationship as defined by the standard.

For all hedging instruments, the Group documents the hedging

relationship and the risk management objective and strategy

for undertaking the hedge.

Cash flow hedge accounting consists of recognising the effective

portion of changes in the fair value of the derivative in equity.

The gain or loss on the ineffective portion of the hedge is

immediately recognised in profit or loss. The cumulative gains

or losses recognised in equity are recycled to the income

statement over the period in which the hedged item impacts

profit or loss. If the hedging instrument expires, is sold or no

longer qualifies for hedge accounting, cumulative gains or

losses recognised in equity are recycled to the income

statement either immediately or as and when the transaction

initially hedged is completed.

The fair values of derivatives designated as hedging instruments are as follows:

(In € millions)

Cash flow hedge reserve at 30.06.2022

Notional amount

Change in cash flow

 hedge reserve

during the period

Cash flow hedge

reserve recycled

through profit or loss

 during the period

Deconsolidated

companies Deferred taxes

Currency derivatives 1,140.6 123.1 (81.1) 0.0 (10.9)

Interest rate 

derivatives 300.0 14.4 0.0 0.0 0.0

TOTAL 1,440.6 137.5 (81.1) 0.0 (10.9)

(In € millions)

Cash flow hedge reserve at 31.12.2021

Notional amount

Change in cash flow

hedge reserve

during the period

Cash flow hedge

reserve recycled

through profit or loss

 during the period

Deconsolidated

companies Deferred taxes

Currency derivatives 1,052.9 105.5 (63.7) 0.0 (10.9)

Interest rate 

derivatives 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

TOTAL 1,052.9 105.5 (63.7) 0.0 (10.9)

Derivatives designated as hedging instruments comprise currency swaps, purchased currency options and interest rate swaps.

Currency swaps

Derivatives designated as hedging instruments consist of two

currency swaps hedging the impact of exchange rate

fluctuations on:

• annual interest payments on two subordinated notes issues

denominated in foreign currency (US dollars only);

• the issue-date and redemption-date nominal amounts of

each of these issues.

The transactions concerned are as follows:

• the first is on US dollar-denominated subordinated notes issued

in January 2016 and hedges interest payments on the

notes through to 22  January 2029 against fluctuations in

the dollar-euro exchange rate;

• the second is on US dollar-denominated subordinated notes

issued on 7 April 2021 and hedges payments on the notes

through to 7 April 2031 against fluctuations in the dollar-euro

exchange rate.

These derivatives are eligible for cash flow hedge accounting,

as described below. No amount was recognised in profit or

loss for any ineffective portion of the hedges at 30 June 2022

or 31 December 2021.
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Purchased currency options

At 30 June 2022, the Group did not hold any purchased currency options qualifying for hedge accounting.

Interest rate swaps

Interest rate swaps are derivative contracts through which

interest rates are swapped in order to reduce the volatility of

interest payments on long-term debt.

The transaction concerned is a long-term borrowing

subscribed in 2022 and hedges interest payments through to

30 September 2032 against fluctuations in the interest rate.

7.6 Credit risk

7.6.1 Analysis of the bond portfolio at 30 June 2022 by issuer rating

Rating

(In € millions)

Bond portfolio

at fair value %

AAA 13,485.2 5.5%

AA 98,220.4 40.1%

A 53,050.6 21.6%

BBB 50,526.4 20.6%

< BBB 25,583.4 10.4%

Not rated 4,278.0 1.7%

TOTAL 245,144.0 100.0%

7.6.2 Analysis of the bond portfolio at 31 December 2021 by issuer rating

Rating

(In € millions)

Bond portfolio

at fair value %

AAA 12,474.7 4.7%

AA 112,772.8 42.8%

A 58,232.7 22.1%

BBB 56,452.7 21.4%

< BBB 19,840.2 7.5%

Not rated 3,893.0 1.5%

TOTAL 263,666.1 100.0%
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7.7 Classification of sovereign debt by issuer country

List of countries

(In € millions)

30.06.2022 31.12.2021

Gross exposure

– carrying

amount *

Gross exposure

Fair value

Net exposure

Fair value

Gross exposure

– carrying

amount*

Gross exposure

Fair value

Net exposure

Fair value

France 79,879.0 75,624.6 7,796.6 79,235.7 86,089.4 8,415.0

Brazil 21,387.3 21,269.8 1,700.0 17,334.5 17,227.0 1,407.7

Italy 15,192.3 13,406.6 1,250.3 14,523.5 15,267.4 989.7

Spain 10,640.7 9,942.8 1,226.9 10,657.6 11,517.5 1,360.5

Belgium 6,372.3 5,520.3 635.8 8,392.4 8,798.9 811.5

Germany 5,147.2 4,656.2 360.5 3,886.7 4,177.0 303.2

Portugal 727.5 687.2 97.3 409.4 437.9 73.4

Austria 613.4 587.3 132.0 502.6 549.3 34.3

Canada 468.0 449.6 54.9 468.5 488.1 59.6

Poland 262.7 249.3 60.7 359.5 375.7 69.6

Romania 171.6 124.5 8.2 175.4 175.4 10.3

Netherlands 146.0 143.5 19.4 139.1 151.2 13.5

Mexico 124.0 99.2 6.5 108.3 108.4 6.3

Cyprus 111.5 106.7 50.4 105.9 110.8 53.0

Ireland 97.7 80.7 4.6 206.8 208.1 26.1

Greece 8.2 9.3 0.1 8.2 11.0 0.1

United Kingdom 1.6 2.2 0.0 1.6 2.6 0.0

Other 8,163.0 7,456.2 916.4 6,208.4 6,574.2 797.7

TOTAL 149,514.1 140,416.2 14,320.9 142,724.0 152,269.8 14,431.5

* Carrying amount, including accrued coupon

Virtually all of the securities concerned are classified as

available-for-sale financial assets.

At 30  June 2022, the fair value of sovereign debt stood at

€140.4  billion. After taking into account equity interests and

deferred taxes, the net exposure of CNP Assurances (including

non-controlling interests) was €14.3 billion.

The calculation of net exposure has been standardised at

Group level and reflects both the current market environment

and policies concerning deferred participation. Calculating net

exposure from gross exposure takes account of the impacts

of deferred taxes and deferred participation based on shadow

accounting principles, as well as the exclusion of assets held

to cover linked liabilities. In accordance with these principles, a

change in the deferred participation reserve is recorded to

offset unrealised gains or losses on financial assets taking into

account contractual participation obligations and the Group’s

policyholder bonus policy (see Note  8.2). The relatively low

weighting of contracts with a guaranteed yield and the Group’s

ability to allocate losses on financial assets to policyholders

over the long term, reinforces the validity of this approach to

presenting the impact of net exposure.

The apparent 10.2% ratio of “net exposure” to “gross exposure”

therefore reflects the deferred tax impact (factor of approximately

72.1% corresponding to the impact of the weighted average

tax rate on the Group’s entities) and a deferred participation

impact (14.1% factor, supplementing the effective participation

rate taking into account the exclusion of assets held in unit-

linked funds, which corresponds to shareholders’ entitlements

to unrealised gains or losses).

The combination of these two impacts (taxes and deferred

participation) results in a net exposure to gross exposure ratio

of 10.2% (72.1% multiplied by 14.1%).

The difference between gross and net exposure does not

necessarily represent the loss that would be borne by

policyholders. The recoverability of successive losses on

sovereign debt is limited by the following:

• the Group’s ability to lower the discretionary participation it

pays to policyholders. In France, the estimated minimum

guaranteed interest rate was approximately 0.16% at

31 December 2021 for a projected DPF rate of around 0.91%

at that date (latest available data);

• unrealised gains, especially on property (€5.4  billion) and

on equities (€12.4  billion). These amounts would be taken

into account when testing any deferred participation assets

for recoverability.

In the absence of an incurred loss, no other sovereign debt

securities have been impaired.
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NOTE 8 Insurance and financial liabilities

8.1 Contract classification

Contracts recognised and measured in accordance with

IFRS 4 include:

• insurance contracts (see definition below) that cover a risk

for the insured. Examples include personal risk contracts,

pension contracts, property and casualty contracts and

unit-linked savings contracts with a guaranteed element;

• financial instruments with DPF, comprising both traditional

savings contracts with DPF and unit-linked contracts

including a traditional savings component with DPF.

Financial instruments without DPF are recognised and measured

in accordance with IAS 39. This category corresponds to unit-

linked savings contracts that do not have any traditional

savings component or guaranteed element.

Contracts that do not fulfil the criteria for classification as

either insurance contracts or financial instruments without DPF

fall within the scope of:

• IFRS 15, when they correspond to the provision of services; or

• IAS  19, for contracts taken out in connection with benefit

plans in favour of Group employees.

8.2 Insurance contracts and financial instruments with DPF

Insurance contracts and financial instruments with DPF are

accounted for in accordance with Group accounting policies,

as well as with the specific provisions of IFRS  4 concerning

shadow accounting and liability adequacy tests. At each

reporting date, the Group assesses whether its recognised

insurance liabilities net of its insurance assets (deferred

participation asset plus other insurance-related intangible

assets) are adequate, using current estimates of future cash

flows under the insurance contracts and financial instruments

with DPF.

Insurance contracts

Contracts under which the Group accepts significant insurance

risk from another party (the policyholder) by agreeing to

compensate the policyholder or another beneficiary if a

specified uncertain future event (the insured event) adversely

affects the policyholder or beneficiary are classified as

insurance contracts.

Insurance risk is a risk other than a financial risk. Financial risk

is the risk of a possible future change in one or more variables

such as a specified interest rate, financial instrument price,

commodity price, foreign exchange rate or other variable. In

the case of a non-financial variable, if the variable is not specific

to a party to the contract, the risk is financial; otherwise it is an

insurance risk. Surrender risk, extension risk or the risk of

higher-than-expected administrative expenses are not

insurance risks, unless they are risks originally incurred by the

policyholder that are transferred to the Group under an

insurance contract.

For each group of contracts with similar characteristics, the

significance of the insurance risk is assessed based on a single

representative contract. Under this approach, the insurance

risk may be considered significant although the probability of

the group of contracts generating a loss that has a material

adverse effect on the financial statements is remote due to

the pooling of risks.

Financial instruments with DPF

Contracts that do not expose the Group to an insurance risk or

for which the insurance risk is not material are qualified as

financial instruments when they give rise to a financial asset or

liability. Contracts are qualified as financial instruments with

DPF when they incorporate a contractual or regulatory

entitlement to receive, as a supplement to guaranteed benefits,

additional benefits:

• that are likely to be a significant portion of the total

contractual benefits;

• whose amount or timing is contractually at the Group’s

discretion; and

• that are contractually based on the performance of a

specified pool of contracts or a specified type of contract,

or realised and/or unrealised investment returns on a

specified pool of assets held by the Group, or the profit or

loss of the Company, fund or other entity that issues the

contract.
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Hybrid contracts

Certain contracts written by the Group comprise both an

insurance component and a deposit component. These two

components are unbundled only when the deposit component

can be measured separately and, under the Group’s accounting

policies, the rights and obligations arising from the deposit

component would not be recognised if the contract was not

unbundled. The insurance component of an unbundled contract

is accounted for under IFRS  4 and the deposit component

under IAS 39.

In line with the policy described above, the components of

traditional savings contracts written by the Group are not

unbundled.

Life insurance and savings contracts

Premiums

Premiums on contracts in force during the period are recognised

in revenue. In the case of Group policies that include death

insurance, the recognised amount is adjusted to include the

estimated earned portion of premiums not yet written.

Technical and mathematical reserves

Reserves for contracts with death cover include the portion of

premiums written but not earned during the reporting period.

Mathematical reserves for traditional savings contracts correspond

to the difference between the present value of the respective

commitments of the Group and the policyholder.

Life premium reserves are determined using a discount rate

that is equal to or less than the conservatively estimated

forecast yield on the assets backing the liabilities.

Insurance liabilities are discounted at a rate that is equal to or

less than the contractual rate, using regulatory mortality tables

or internal experience-based tables if these are more

conservative. The discount rate applied to annuities takes into

account the effects of a fall in interest rates when the

contractual rate is considered too high compared with the

expected yield from reinvested premiums.

The general contract administration expense reserve, mentioned

in Article R. 343-3.4 of the French Insurance Code, is designed

to cover the insurer’s commitment to administer its policies for

as long as they remain in force. It is determined by the

method and using the assumptions specified in Article  142-6

of ANC Regulation 2015-11.

The reserve corresponds to a prospective estimate of contract

administration expenses that will not be covered by the

premium and investment income loading. It is calculated by

group of contracts with similar characteristics, based mainly

on policyholder profiles, contract terms and experience-based

assumptions concerning, for example, costs, surrenders and

investment income. The estimation process includes a

financial assessment of the options affecting administration

expenses for certain contracts.

At 30 June 2022, the general administration expense reserve

for savings and pensions contracts amounted to €254.9 million.

When policyholders are entitled to participate in surplus

underwriting profits and investment income in addition to the

guaranteed minimum yield, any surplus not paid during the

period is accumulated in the policyholder surplus reserves.

This reserve also includes the deferred policyholders’ participation

resulting from the use of shadow accounting.

An outstanding claims reserve is set up to cover claims and

benefits outstanding at the reporting date.

Mathematical reserves for unit-linked contracts are determined

by reference to the assets backing the linked liabilities. Gains

and losses arising from the remeasurement of these assets at

fair value are recognised in profit or loss, to offset the impact

of changes in the related technical reserves.

Reserves for guaranteed yields are determined using the

Black & Scholes method.

Disability, accident and health insurance

Premiums are recognised net of taxes and estimated

cancelled premiums.

Earned premiums for the period are adjusted for:

• estimated earned premiums not yet written at the period-end;

• the change in the unearned premium reserve (corresponding

to the portion of premiums written during the period that

relates to the next period).

A reserve is recorded to cover timing differences between the

coverage of risks and their financing in the form of insurance

premiums.

The escalating risks reserve for term creditor insurance business

amounted to €211.6  million at 30  June 2022. This reserve is

calculated prospectively and covers the difference between

the present values of the respective future commitments of

the insurer and the insured. The calculation uses regulatory

valuation rates of interest and takes into account experience-

based biometric risk assumptions (incidence of death and

disability risk, and/or disability persistency risk) and behavioural

assumptions (surrenders) based on historical data for the

portfolio concerned.

The escalating risk reserve for lifetime long-term care contracts

totalled €441.5  million at 30  June 2022. This reserve also

covers the difference between the present values of the

respective future commitments of the insurer and the insured.

The calculation takes into account experience-based biometric

risk assumptions (incidence of long-term care risk and

persistency risk) based on historical data for the portfolio

concerned, regulatory mortality tables and a discount rate

determined by reference to the structure of the asset portfolio

held to cover these commitments.

Claims are recognised in the period in which they are incurred.

The amount recorded covers both reported claims and

estimated claims incurred but not reported (IBNR).

Claims reserves are based on the estimated cost of settling

the claims, net of any forecast recoveries.

A deferred participation reserve is recorded for participating

contracts, based on shadow accounting principles.

A reserve is also recorded for claims handling expenses.
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Liability adequacy test

In drawing up its annual and interim financial statements, the

Group assesses whether its recognised insurance liabilities,

net of its insurance assets (deferred participation asset, deferred

acquisition costs and insurance-related intangible assets), are

adequate, based on current estimates of future cash flows

under its insurance contracts and financial instruments with

DPF. The test is performed using asset-liability management

models, by applying a stochastic approach to estimate

liabilities according to a wide range of scenarios. The models

take into account embedded derivatives (policyholder surrender

options, guaranteed yields, etc.), administrative costs and

decisions made by management in response to economic and

financial conditions. The test determines the economic value

of insurance liabilities corresponding to the average of the

stochastic trajectories. Similar-type contracts are grouped

together when performing the test and the results are

analysed at entity level: if the sum of the surrender value and

deferred participation (asset or liability), less related deferred

acquisition costs and related intangible assets, is less than the

fair value of the recognised insurance liability, the shortfall is

recognised in profit or loss. At 30  June 2022, the liability

adequacy test did not show that the carrying amount of

insurance liabilities was inadequate.

Shadow accounting

Shadow accounting procedures are designed to address the

risk of an artificial imbalance between assets and liabilities

valued using different valuation models. When the measurement

of liabilities, deferred acquisition costs or the Value of In-Force

business is directly affected by realised gains and losses on

assets, a deferred participation reserve is recorded in insurance

liabilities to offset the unrealised gains or losses in financial

assets. Deferred participation is accounted for in the same

way  as the underlying, i.e., by adjusting either profit or the

revaluation reserve.

The deferred participation reserve is determined by multiplying

fair value adjustments to assets by the estimated participation

rate corresponding to the contractual obligations associated

with each portfolio. The estimated participation rate takes into

account regulatory and contractual participation clauses, as

well as the Group’s profit-taking programme and policyholder

bonus policy. Participation rates applied to unrealised gains

and losses for shadow accounting purposes are the same as

the rates applied to consolidation adjustments for the purpose

of determining deferred participation.

The portion of gains or losses attributable to policyholders is

determined based on the terms of participating contracts.

Shadow accounting is not applied to non-participating

contracts that fall outside the scope of regulations requiring

payment of a guaranteed minimum participating dividend.

The amount of deferred participation calculated for each

entity under shadow accounting principles is recognised

either in liabilities as a deferred participation reserve or in

assets as a deferred participation asset.

Testing deferred participation assets 

for recoverability

Deferred participation assets are tested for recoverability to

ensure that the amount calculated based on the participation

rates estimated as described previously and in accordance

with the going concern principle, is recoverable out of future

actual or unrealised profits and will not result in liability

inadequacy vis-à-vis the Group’s economic obligations.

Recoverability testing uses the same methods as liability

adequacy testing described above and testing is performed at

the level of each group of contracts in order to factor portfolio

segregation arrangements into the assessment.

Pursuant to the recommendation of the French National

Accounting Board (Conseil National de la Comptabilité – CNC)

of 19 December 2008 concerning the recognition of deferred

participation assets in the consolidated accounts of insurance

companies, the recoverability of these amounts is enhanced

by the Group’s conservative assessment of its ability to

continue to hold its assets. In particular, no future retained

fund flows have been taken into account. Moreover, the Group

has demonstrated the recoverability of the deferred

participation assets using unprecedented surrender rates.

At 30 June 2022, there were no issues as regards recoverability.

Reinsurance

Outward reinsurance

Premiums, claims and technical reserves are stated before

reinsurance. Ceded amounts are recognised under the

“Reinsurance result” line item of the income statement.

If there is objective evidence that these reserves are impaired,

as a result of an event that occurred after initial recognition,

the carrying amount of the asset is reduced by recording an

impairment loss in the income statement. For reinsurance

assets secured by collateral, the estimated discounted cash

flows from the asset take into account cash flows from the

sale of the collateral, net of the estimated cost of obtaining

execution of the guarantee, regardless of whether or not such

sale is considered probable.

Inward reinsurance

Inward reinsurance contracts give rise to a significant

insurance risk and are therefore accounted for in the same

way as insurance contracts.
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8.3 Financial instruments without DPF (IAS 39)

Financial instruments without DPF are initially recorded at fair

value. Loading on premiums is recognised in “Revenue from

other activities”.

Unit-linked contracts are subsequently measured at fair value,

with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

Traditional savings investment contracts are subsequently

measured at fair value, corresponding to their surrender value.

8.4 Deferred participation asset/reserve

The adjustments made in application of IFRS 4 lead to the recognition of deferred policyholder participation in assets or liabilities.

There are two types of deferred participation:

8.4.1 Unconditional participation

All differences in the calculation base of future rights between

the separate financial statements and the consolidated financial

statements are recognised in the deferred participation reserve.

This applies in particular to policyholder rights in positive and

negative fair value adjustments and restatements of the

separate financial statements of Group entities. Their amount

is adjusted using a method that is consistent with the initial

measurement and the pattern of recognition in profit or loss of

fair value adjustments and restatements.

8.4.2 Conditional participation

This corresponds to the difference in rights between the separate

and consolidated financial statements, whose payment depends

on a management decision or the occurrence of an event.

These rights are recognised only when the event or management

decision is highly probable. Conditional participation also arises

from the application of the shadow accounting technique

described in Note 8.2.
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8.5 Analysis of insurance and financial liabilities at 30 June 2022

The following tables show the sub-classifications of insurance liabilities that require separate disclosure under IFRS:

(In € millions)

Before

reinsurance

Net of

reinsurance Reinsurance

Non-life technical reserves 8,169.2 7,674.4 494.8

Unearned premium reserves 1,155.0 1,139.5 15.5

Outstanding claims reserves 5,280.2 4,878.3 401.9

Bonuses and rebates (including claims equalisation reserve 

on group business maintained in liabilities) 25.7 25.1 0.6

Other technical reserves 1,708.3 1,631.5 76.8

Liability adequacy test reserves 0.0 0.0 0.0

Life technical reserves 263,845.1 247,038.4 16,806.7

Unearned premium reserves 2,204.1 2,203.3 0.8

Life premium reserves 249,186.0 232,886.5 16,299.5

Outstanding claims reserves 3,477.3 3,199.6 277.6

Policyholder surplus reserves 8,644.8 8,428.0 216.8

Other technical reserves 333.0 321.1 11.9

Liability adequacy test reserves 0.0 0.0 0.0

Financial instruments with DPF 104,168.1 101,096.0 3,072.1

Life premium reserves 94,180.4 91,366.7 2,813.7

Outstanding claims reserves 2,439.2 2,334.5 104.7

Policyholder surplus reserves 7,548.5 7,394.9 153.6

Other technical reserves 0.0 0.0 0.0

Liability adequacy test reserves 0.0 0.0 0.0

Financial instruments without DPF 3,340.5 3,091.5 249.0

Derivative financial instruments separated from the host contract 0.0 0.0 0.0

Deferred participation reserve 3,970.2 3,970.2 0.0

TOTAL INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 383,493.1 362,870.5 20,622.6

Deferred participation asset 2,699.5 2,699.5 0.0
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8.6 Analysis of insurance and financial liabilities at 31 December 2021

(In € millions)

Before

reinsurance

Net of

reinsurance Reinsurance

Non-life technical reserves 7,945.6 7,437.1 508.4

Unearned premium reserves 952.7 936.7 16.0

Outstanding claims reserves 5,305.6 4,884.3 421.4

Bonuses and rebates (including claims equalisation reserve 

on group business maintained in liabilities) 23.6 23.0 0.6

Other technical reserves 1,663.6 1,593.2 70.4

Liability adequacy test reserves 0.0 0.0 0.0

Life technical reserves 260,990.1 243,926.7 17,063.4

Unearned premium reserves 2,028.9 2,028.2 0.7

Life premium reserves 248,016.0 231,360.4 16,655.5

Outstanding claims reserves 3,199.6 2,984.1 215.5

Policyholder surplus reserves 7,316.1 7,135.9 180.2

Other technical reserves 353.8 342.4 11.5

Liability adequacy test reserves 0.0 0.0 0.0

Financial instruments with DPF 107,290.3 104,095.5 3,194.8

Life premium reserves 97,949.0 95,007.1 2,941.9

Outstanding claims reserves 2,212.6 2,110.7 101.9

Policyholder surplus reserves 7,128.7 6,977.8 150.9

Other technical reserves 0.0 0.0 0.0

Liability adequacy test reserves 0.0 0.0 0.0

Financial instruments without DPF 3,715.3 3,436.9 278.4

Derivative financial instruments separated from the host contract 0.0 0.0 0.0

Deferred participation reserve 31,599.6 31,599.6 0.0

TOTAL INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 411,540.8 390,495.9 21,044.9

Deferred participation asset 0.0 0.0 0.0
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NOTE 9 Insurance and reinsurance receivables

This note discloses details of insurance and reinsurance receivables at 30 June 2022 and at 31 December 2021.

(In € millions) 30.06.2022 31.12.2021

Earned premiums not yet written 3,509.2 1,577.4

Other insurance receivables 1,730.7 857.9

Reinsurance receivables 191.9 205.5

TOTAL 5,431.8 2,640.7

Of which, doubtful receivables 7.4 7.1

NOTE 10 Liabilities arising from insurance and reinsurance transactions

This note discloses details of insurance and reinsurance liabilities at 30 June 2022 and at 31 December 2021.

(In € millions) 30.06.2022 31.12.2021

Cash deposits received from reinsurers 10,779.1 11,185.2

Liabilities arising from insurance transactions 3,765.9 989.6

Liabilities arising from reinsurance transactions 625.0 779.0

Deferred acquisition costs 3.1 4.0

TOTAL 15,173.1 12,957.7
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Analysis of the main components of the income statement

NOTE 11 Premium income

Premium income comprises:

• earned premiums;

• loading on premiums on financial instruments without DPF

(IAS 39), reported under “Revenue from other activities”.

Service contracts

Contracts that do not expose the Group to an insurance risk or

for which the insurance risk is not material are qualified as

service contracts when they do not give rise to any financial

asset or liability. In accordance with IFRS 15, revenue from the

rendering of services is recognised by reference to the stage

of completion of the transaction at the reporting date,

provided that the transaction’s outcome can be estimated

reliably.

11.1 Earned premiums and revenue from other activities

Business segment and contract type

(In € millions) 30.06.2022 30.06.2021

Insurance contracts 17,806.0 13,833.0

• Life 16,503.5 12,550.3

Pure premiums 15,601.7 11,742.0

Loading 901.7 808.3

• Non-life 1,302.5 1,282.7

Pure premiums 845.9 866.1

Loading 456.6 416.6

Financial instruments with DPF 2,122.9 2,440.0

Pure premiums 2,112.0 2,427.7

Loading 10.9 12.3

Earned premiums 19,928.9 16,273.1

Revenue from other activities

(In € millions) 30.06.2022 30.06.2021

Financial instruments without DPF 5.9 13.2

Premium loading on financial instruments without DPF (IAS 39) 3.2 9.8

Loading on technical reserves for financial instruments without DPF 2.7 3.4

IFRS 15 38.0 36.0

Other activities 1.4 1.3

TOTAL 45.3 50.5
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11.2 Reconciliation to reported premium income

(In € millions) 30.06.2022 30.06.2021

Earned premiums 19,928.9 16,273.1

Premium loading on financial instruments without DPF (IAS 39) 3.2 9.8

TOTAL 19,932.1 16,282.9

11.3 Premium income by partner

(In € millions) 30.06.2022 30.06.2021

La Banque Postale 4,000.0 3,977.9

BPCE 3,087.3 3,270.4

CNP Patrimoine 1,693.8 1,737.2

Companies and local authorities 614.4 611.4

Provident institute 125.7 156.8

Financial institutions 512.2 522.9

Mutual insurers 235.5 246.3

Amétis 102.7 132.8

International subsidiaries 9,533.3 5,609.6

Other 27.3 17.7

TOTAL PREMIUM INCOME 19,932.1 16,282.9

11.4 Premium income by business segment

(In € millions) 30.06.2022 30.06.2021

Savings 12,922.7 10,225.4

Pensions 3,697.0 2,940.0

Personal Risk 825.2 746.9

Term creditor insurance 2,172.0 2,041.6

Health insurance 165.1 177.9

Property & Casualty 150.0 151.0

Sub-total Personal Risk and other 3,312.3 3,117.4

Other business segments 0.0 0.0

TOTAL PREMIUM INCOME 19,932.1 16,282.9
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11.5 Premium income by company

(In € millions) 30.06.2022 30.06.2021

CNP Assurances 10,304.2 10,584.4

Groupe CNP Seguros Holding 316.0 304.2

Groupe Caixa Vida e Previdência 3,570.7 2,680.7

CNP UniCredit Vita 2,009.6 1,762.6

Groupe CNP Santander Insurance 374.5 372.5

Groupe CNP Vita Assicura 2,734.2 0.0

CNP Luxembourg 331.7 247.2

CNP Partners 73.9 119.3

Groupe CNP Cyprus Insurance 97.5 91.6

MFPrévoyance S.A. 69.9 68.0

CNP Caution 38.9 44.0

CNP Assurances Compañía de Seguros 11.0 8.5

TOTAL PREMIUM INCOME 19,932.1 16,282.9

11.6 Premium income by country

(In € millions)

Under IFRS

30.06.2022 30.06.2021

France 10,398.8 10,673.2

Brazil 3,886.7 2,984.9

Italy 4,822.2 1,891.7

Luxembourg 331.7 247.2

Germany 239.9 229.8

Cyprus 96.0 89.9

Spain 64.2 70.7

Poland 37.0 40.4

Norway 11.6 11.7

Austria 12.6 10.8

Denmark 6.7 9.9

Argentina 11.0 8.5

Portugal 1.3 1.4

Other 12.4 12.8

TOTAL PREMIUM INCOME 19,932.1 16,282.9

11.7 Direct and inward reinsurance premiums

(In € millions) 30.06.2022 30.06.2021

Direct business premiums 18,522.8 14,798.9

Inward reinsurance premiums 1,409.3 1,484.0

TOTAL PREMIUM INCOME 19,932.1 16,282.9
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NOTE 12 Investment income

12.1 Investment income and expense

This note discloses the main income, expenses, profits and losses generated by financial assets and liabilities that have been

recognised in profit or loss or directly in equity for first-half 2022 and first-half 2021.

(In € millions) 30.06.2022 30.06.2021

Available-for-sale financial

assets

Income from debt securities 122.8 77.5

Interest income 1,788.9 1,936.4

Income from other financial assets 1,075.2 1,002.9

Capital gains and losses on disposals 848.8 407.2

Impairment (83.9) 89.8

Net income from available-for-sale financial assets 3,751.8 3,513.8

Held-to-maturity 

investments

Income from debt securities 0.0 0.0

Interest income 8.6 19.6

Other income & charges 0.0 0.0

Impairment 0.0 0.0

Net income from held-to-maturity investments 8.6 19.6

Loans and receivables Interest income 24.7 36.5

Other income 0.0 (0.5)

Impairment 0.0 0.0

Net income from loans and receivables 24.7 36.0

Financial assets at fair 

value through profit or loss

Profit (loss) on securities held for trading (7,669.1) 4,164.6

Profit (loss) on derivative instruments held for trading 

and hedging 1,952.9 (325.9)

Capital gains and losses on disposals 129.6 74.1

Net income (expense) from financial assets at fair value 

through profit or loss (5,586.6) 3,912.8

Investment property Rent and other revenue 27.3 28.1

Fair value adjustments 52.4 11.0

Capital gains and losses on disposals 0.6 (14.0)

Net income from investment property 80.3 25.1

Other investment expenses (212.7) (130.2)

Dilution gain 0.0 0.0

TOTAL INVESTMENT INCOME (EXPENSE) (1,934.1) 7,377.1

Interest on subordinated debt at amortised cost (107.4) (126.4)

Interest on subordinated debt at fair value 0.0 0.0

Finance costs – Cash flow hedges 12.6 6.0

Total finance costs (94.8) (120.4)

TOTAL INVESTMENT INCOME (EXPENSE) NET OF FINANCE COSTS (2,028.8) 7,256.7
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Reconciliation of investment income and expenses to the amounts reported 

in the income statement

(In € millions) 30.06.2022 30.06.2021

Investment income before finance costs (1,934.1) 7,377.1

Finance costs (94.8) (120.4)

TOTAL (2,028.8) 7,256.7

12.2 Impairment

This note discloses the nature and amount of impairment losses on financial assets recognised in profit or loss, by significant

category of financial assets.

(In € millions) 30.06.2022 30.06.2021

Fixed-rate bonds 0.0 0.0

Variable-rate bonds 0.0 0.0

TCNs (money market securities) 0.0 0.0

Equities (66.0) (35.2)

Equity investment funds (26.1) (0.4)

Non-voting loan stock 0.0 0.0

Other (including mutual fund units) (97.3) (90.7)

Available-for-sale financial assets (189.5) (126.3)

Held-to-maturity investments 0.0 0.0

Loans and receivables 0.0 0.0

Total impairment expense (189.5) (126.3)

Fixed-rate bonds 0.0 0.0

Variable-rate bonds 13.1 0.0

TCNs (money market securities) 0.0 0.0

Equities 55.0 201.8

Equity investment funds 2.5 3.6

Non-voting loan stock 0.0 0.0

Other (including mutual fund units) 34.9 14.0

Available-for-sale financial assets 105.6 219.4

Held-to-maturity investments 0.0 0.0

Loans and receivables 0.0 0.0

Total impairment reversals 105.6 219.4

NET CHANGE IN IMPAIRMENT PROVISIONS (83.9) 93.1
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NOTE 13 Income tax expense

French tax group

CNP Assurances and its main French subsidiaries have elected

to file a consolidated tax return under French group relief

rules. The main companies in the tax group are

CNP Assurances and its subsidiaries CNP Caution, CICOGE S.A.

(property investment company), SAS THEEMIM, AEP 3, AEP 4,

Assur-immeuble, Pyramides  2, Écureuil  Vie  Investment,

270  Investment, US  Real  Estate  EVJ, US  Real  Estate  270,

Pial 34, Passage du Faidherbe, Alleray, Yellowalto, FPIP, Lyfe,

Sogestop  K, Foncière  HID, Pierre  et  Surene, 23-25  Marignan,

36 Marbeuf, 46 Kleber, 46 Kleber Holding, Infra Invest France,

Neuilly  Pilot, Ybry  pont  Neuilly, Geosud, Friedensallee,

Montparvie  IV, Montparvie  V, QIS  France, Youse  Home,

SAS Le Square, CNP Retraite, Sogestop L and MFPrévoyance.

The companies in the tax group have signed agreements with

CNP Assurances, which is liable towards the French Treasury

for the payment of the tax due by the tax group. These

agreements specify how the total tax liability is allocated

among the tax group members, and stipulate that any

unallocated balance will be borne by CNP Assurances.

Current and deferred taxes

Income tax expense reported in the income statement

includes both current and deferred taxes.

Deferred taxes are recognised on temporary differences

between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities and their

tax base. In accordance with IAS  12, a deferred tax liability is

recognised for all taxable temporary differences between the

carrying amount and tax base of investments in subsidiaries,

associates and branches and interests in joint arrangements,

except where the following conditions are met:

• CNP  Assurances, as the parent, investor, joint venturer or

joint operator is able to control the timing of the reversal of

the temporary difference; and

• it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse

in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset at the level of each

taxable entity or tax group. Deferred tax assets and liabilities

arising from changes in asset values and from the recognition

of deferred participation are calculated and tracked

separately.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses carried

forward when it is probable that sufficient taxable profit will be

available to permit their realisation. Net deferred tax assets

resulting from the offsetting of deferred tax assets and

liabilities are recognised when sufficient taxable profit can be

expected to be generated to permit their realisation. Deferred

tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The following table discloses the main components of income tax expense.

(In € millions) 30.06.2022 30.06.2021

Current tax 322.9 353.2

Deferred tax 35.6 17.8

INCOME TAX EXPENSE 358.5 371.0

Profit for the period 899.0 801.4

Tax rate 28.51% 31.64%

INCOME TAX EXPENSE 358.5 371.0

NOTE 14 Segment information

In accordance with IFRS  8, the Group’s reportable business

segments are based on the internal reporting system

approved by the Group’s Executive Committee, regarded as

the chief operating decision-maker as defined by IFRS 8.

The choice of geographical segmentation is based on a multi-

criteria organisation linked to the Group’s strategic priorities

(geography, activities, networks) and the allocation of goodwill

to mainly geographical cash-generating units. It has been

adopted in order to present geographic segments as the

Group’s operating segments based on the definitions in IFRS 8

paragraphs 8 and 10.

The three geographic segments are:

• France;

• Latin America;

• Europe excluding France.



68 CNP Assurances — 2022 Interim Financial Report

2
CNP Assurances Interim Consolidated Financial Statements six months ended 30 June 2022

First-half 2022 consolidated financial statements

The Group’s internal reporting system is based on the

following indicators:

• premium income and revenue from other activities: earned

premiums and revenue from other activities, including non-

controlling interests and ceded premiums. Premium

income and revenue from other activities is an indicator of

underwriting volume is an indicator of underwriting volume;

• total revenue: net insurance revenue plus revenue from

own fund portfolios, including non-controlling interests but

net of ceded premiums. It is the margin before deducting

administrative expenses;

• net insurance revenue: sum of insurance loading,

underwriting results and reinsurance results, net of

commission paid to distribution partners, including non-

controlling interests but net of ceded premiums. It is the

margin generated by the insurance business before

deducting administrative costs;

• administrative costs: costs of administering and managing

insurance contracts, excluding commissions paid to the

distribution networks. This indicator includes non-

controlling interests;

• earnings before interest and taxes (EBIT): attributable net

profit before finance costs, income tax expense, non-

controlling and equity-accounted interests, fair value

adjustments and net gains (losses), non-recurring items.

This indicator includes non-controlling interests and is gross

of income tax expense. It is the margin generated by the

insurance business after deducting administrative costs;

• underlying attributable profit: attributable net profit before

income tax expense, non-recurring items, fair value

adjustments and net gains (losses). This indicator is

calculated net of non-controlling interests and is gross of

income tax expense. It is the margin after finance costs and

non-controlling and equity-accounted interests.

14.1 Income statement by business segment – First-half 2022

(In € millions) France Latin America

Europe excl.

France Total IFRS

Premium income* 10,398.8 3,897.7 5,635.6 19,932.1

Total revenue 1,582.7 496.7 288.7 2,368.1

Administrative expenses (318.6) (75.7) (99.6) (493.9)

EBIT 1,264.1 421.0 189.1 1,874.2

Finance costs (95.4)

Share of profit of equity-accounted companies 14.8

Non-controlling interests (323.4)

Recurring profit attributable to owners 

of the parent 1,470.2

Income tax expense (389.2)

Profit (loss) from discontinued operations, after tax (60.8)

Fair value adjustments and net gains 19.8

Non-recurring items (291.8)

Profit attributable to owners of the parent 748.2

* A reconciliation of earned premiums to premium income is presented in Note 11

Reconciliation of EBIT to operating profit

(In € millions) 30.06.2022

EBIT 1,874.2

Mark-to-market adjustments and amortisation of intangible assets (81.9)

Non-recurring items (393.4)

Net impact of equity-accounted entities (10.0)

Operating profit 1,388.9
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14.2 Income statement by business segment – First-half 2021

(In € millions) France Latin America

Europe excl.

France Total IFRS

Premium income* 10,673.2 2,993.4 2,616.2 16,282.9

Total revenue 1,412.9 395.9 166.0 1,974.7

Administrative expenses (304.9) (59.8) (63.1) (427.8)

EBIT 1,108.0 336.1 102.8 1,546.9

Finance costs (120.3)

Share of profit of equity-accounted companies 4.7

Non-controlling interests (232.9)

Recurring profit attributable to owners 

of the parent 1,198.4

Income tax expense (335.7)

Fair value adjustments and net gains (16.9)

Non-recurring items (155.8)

Profit attributable to owners of the parent 690.0

* A reconciliation of earned premiums to premium income is presented in Note 11

Reconciliation of EBIT to operating profit

(In € millions) 30.06.2021

EBIT 1,546.9

Mark-to-market adjustments and amortisation of intangible assets (41.3)

Non-recurring items (217.6)

Net impact of equity-accounted entities (20.1)

Operating profit 1,267.9
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Other significant accounting policies and disclosures

NOTE 15 Other significant accounting policies and disclosures

15.1 Foreign currency balances

The individual Group entities translate foreign currency

transactions into the entity’s functional currency at the

exchange rate on the transaction date. For practical reasons,

the last available exchange rate for the month preceding the

transaction date is used as the rate on the transaction date for

currencies that have been subject to only limited fluctuations

during the period.

At each reporting date, monetary balance sheet items

(excluding available-for-sale financial assets) are translated

using the closing rate, and the resulting exchange differences

are recognised in profit or loss unless hedge accounting is

used as described in Note 7.5.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities measured using the cost

model are translated into euros at the exchange rate on the

transaction date, while non-monetary assets and liabilities

measured using the fair value model are translated at the

exchange rate on the date of remeasurement at fair value.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised in

other comprehensive income, e.g., when a non-monetary

asset is classified as available-for-sale, the difference arising

on translation of the item is also recognised in other

comprehensive income. Similarly, when a gain or loss on a

non-monetary item is recognised directly in profit or loss, the

translation difference is also recognised in profit or loss.

15.2 Employee benefit obligations

Employee benefit obligations are recognised in full in the

balance sheet in accordance with IAS  19, except for share

grants which are recognised and measured in accordance

with IFRS 2.

Short-term benefits are benefits that are expected to be

settled in full within 12  months of the end of the annual

reporting period in which the employees render the related

services. They therefore consist mainly of wages, social

security contributions, profit-sharing and bonuses, paid annual

leave and non-monetary benefits (such as medical care,

housing, cars and free or subsidised goods or services).

15.2.1 Employee benefit plans

Time-savings accounts and employee 

retirement savings plans

A time-savings account system has been set up for

CNP  Assurances’ employees, entitling them to save up their

rights to paid leave or to monetise these rights immediately or

at a future date.

Internal agreements stipulate that rights accumulated in the

time-savings account may be credited to a PERCO employee

retirement savings plan and qualify for a matching employer

contribution.

Post-employment benefits

Post-employment benefits include:

(a) pension plans;

(b) other post-employment benefits.

They are classified as defined contribution or defined benefit

plans based on their main terms.

Defined benefit pension plan

The annuity and financial risks arising from the retirement of

plan participants are covered by an insurance policy.

Obligations under defined benefit plans and the related costs

are measured by the projected unit credit method. The

amount recognised in the balance sheet for pension

obligations corresponds to the difference between the

projected benefit obligation and the fair value of the plan

assets.

The actuarial assumptions used to measure defined benefit

obligations vary depending on economic conditions in the

country in which the plan has been set up.

Pension plans in the international entities

Several defined contribution plans and a limited number of

defined benefit plans have been set up throughout the

different Group entities.
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Length-of-service awards payable to 

employees on retirement and jubilees

Obligations for the payment of length-of-service awards and

jubilees are measured by the projected unit credit method

and recognised as a liability.

Discount rate

The discount rate corresponds to the yield on investment

grade corporate bonds that are traded in an active market (or

the government bond rate if no active market exists) with

maturities that match the duration of the benefit obligation.

Accounting treatment

Assets of funded plans are segregated and managed

separately from the Group’s assets, and any funding surplus or

deficit is recognised in the balance sheet.

Liabilities under unfunded plans are recognised in the balance

sheet.

The Group recognises gains and losses on post-employment

defined benefit plans in other comprehensive income.

Actuarial gains and losses on other long-term benefits are

recognised directly in profit or loss.

Actuarial losses recognised in current profit for defined-

benefit plans comprise two elements:

• current service cost and past service cost;

• interest cost (reflecting the unwinding of any discounting to

present value) less the expected return on plan assets.

15.2.2 Share-based payment

Accounting treatment of employee 

share grants

The shares held for allocation when the share grants vest are

recorded as a deduction from equity. The difference between

the average cost of the shares and their fair value at the grant

date is recognised in equity, with no impact on profit or loss.

The cost of the employee services received in exchange for

the grants is measured by reference to the fair value of the

shares, in accordance with IFRS  2, and is recognised in

employee benefits expense over the vesting period, with a

corresponding adjustment to equity. The cost recognised in

profit or loss takes into account the estimated number of

grantees at each reporting date and the cost of managing the

shares.

15.3 Acquisition costs and operating expenses

Underwriting expenses are presented by function:

• claim and benefit handling expenses include the costs of

the departments responsible for paying claims,

endowments and periodic benefits and processing

surrenders;

• acquisition costs include all selling, distribution and

administrative expenses incurred for the acquisition of new

contracts;

• contract administration expenses include all the costs of

managing In-Force business;

• investment management costs include all internal and

external costs of managing asset portfolios and financial

expenses;

• other underwriting costs correspond to overhead expenses

that cannot be allocated rationally to the other functions;

• non-underwriting costs correspond to costs related to

businesses that have no technical link to the insurance

business.

Cost recognition and allocation:

• operating expenses are initially recognised by nature and

are then reallocated by function;

• costs recognised by nature that relate to a single function

are posted to the function concerned without applying any

allocation key.

Other costs are analysed between:

• corporate costs, which are allocated to the operating

centres using statistical cost allocation keys or actual

business data;

• operating costs, as adjusted to include corporate costs,

which are allocated to the functions using a specific

allocation key for each business.
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15.4 Application of IAS 29

Argentina has been qualified as a hyperinflationary economy

since 1 July 2018.

As a result, IAS  29 “Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary

Economies”, requires the financial statements of entities

whose functional currency is the Argentine peso to be restated.

CNP Assurances has two subsidiaries in Argentina, CNP Assurances

Compañía de Seguros and CNP S.A. de Capitalización, whose

functional currency is the Argentine peso.

The analysis of the impacts related to the application of this

standard enables the Group to ensure that its accounting

policies do not need to be modified.

15.5 Average number of employees of consolidated companies

(Headcount) 30.06.2022

31.12.2021

restated*

Management-grade 2,807 2,621

Non-management-grade 2,579 2,554

Average headcount 5,385 5,175

* The number of employees in 2021 has been restated to reflect the new accounting method that excludes employees with fixed-term or suspended

contracts

The above headcount does not include the headcount of the companies accounted for by the equity method.

15.6 Sale of CNP Partners

On 5 May 2022, CNP Assurances entered into an agreement to sell CNP Partners to Mediterráneo Vida (MedVida). CNP Partners is

99.5% owned by CNP Assurances and 0.5% by CNP Caution (a wholly-owned subsidiary of CNP Assurances).

Completion of the transaction is subject to the customary conditions, including regulatory authorisations.

At 30 June 2022, the main categories of assets and liabilities presented within assets and liabilities held for sale are as follows

(amounts are net of intragroup transactions with other CNP Assurances entities):

(In € millions) 30.06.2022

Other intangible assets 8.5

Insurance investments
(1)

1,835.4

Reinsurers’ share of insurance and financial liabilities 0.6

Other assets 69.0

Cash and cash equivalents 140.2

TOTAL AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE ASSETS 2,053.7

(1) The planned transaction led to the recognition of an impairment loss of €60.8 million in first-half 2022

(In € millions) 30.06.2022

Insurance and financial liabilities 1,953.9

Other liabilities 30.1

TOTAL LIABILITIES RELATED TO ASSETS HELD FOR SALE 1,984.0
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NOTE 16 Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is:

• a possible obligation that arises from past events and

whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence

or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events

not wholly within the control of the Group; or

• a present obligation that arises from past events but is not

recognised because it is not probable that an outflow of

resources embodying economic benefits will be required to

settle the obligation or the amount of the obligation cannot

be measured with sufficient reliability.

Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the balance sheet

but are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements,

except when it is not probable that they will give rise to an

outflow of resources.

Contingent liabilities are regularly reviewed to determine

whether an outflow of resources has become probable or can

be measured with sufficient reliability. If this is the case, a

provision is recognised in the financial statements for the

period in which the change in probability or measurability

occurs.

NOTE 17 Related party information

Two parties are related if one controls or exercises significant

influence over the policy decisions of the other, or if both

parties are subject to significant influence from the same

third-party entity or person.

Related parties are determined based on their relationship

with CNP Assurances, the parent company of the Group, and

mainly consist of its shareholders and entities controlled by

these shareholders or by CNP  Assurances (including its

associates and joint ventures) and members of senior

management.

Transactions and outstanding amounts between the parent

company and its fully-consolidated subsidiaries are eliminated

in full and do not appear in the consolidated financial

statements.

For information, CNP  Assurances received a total of

€215.0 million in dividends from subsidiaries during the period,

including €109.3  million from French subsidiaries,

€76.0  million from Brazilian subsidiaries, €14.4  million from

Italian subsidiaries and €15.3 million from Irish subsidiaries.

Based on the IAS  24 definition, the Group’s direct or indirect

shareholders who have control or exercise significant

influence, their subsidiaries and joint ventures and the

companies over which they exercise significant influence are

all related parties.

The list of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures is

provided in Note 4.
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Statutory Auditors’ Report on the half-year 

Financial Information

This is a free translation into English of the Statutory Auditors’ review report on the half-year financial information issued in

French and is provided solely for the convenience of English-speaking users. This report includes information relating to

the specific verification of information given in the Group’s half-year management report. This report should be read in

conjunction with, and construed in accordance with, French law and professional standards applicable in France.

For the period from 1 January to 30 June 2022

To the Shareholders,

In compliance with the assignment entrusted to us by your Shareholders’ Meeting and in accordance with the requirements of

article L.451-1-2-III of the French Monetary and Financial Code (Code monétaire et financier), we hereby report to you on:

• the review of the accompanying condensed half-year consolidated financial statements of CNP Assurances, for the period from

1 January to 30 June 2022;

• the verification of the information presented in the half-year management report.

These half-year consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Board of Directors. Our role is to express a

conclusion on these financial statements based on our review.

Conclusion on the financial statements

We conducted our review in accordance with professional standards applicable in France.

A review of interim financial information consists of making inquiries, primarily of persons responsible for financial and accounting

matters, and applying analytical and other review procedures.

A review is substantially less in scope than an audit conducted in accordance with professional standards applicable in France and

consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that might be

identified in an audit. Accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the accompanying condensed half-year

consolidated financial statements are not compliant with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union.
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Specific verification

Specific verification

We have also verified the information presented in the half-year management report on the condensed half-year consolidated

financial statements subject to our review.

We have no matters to report as to its conformity and consistency with the condensed half-year consolidated financial statements

except as explained below, it being specified that it is not our responsibility to give an opinion on the fair presentation and the

consistency with the financial statements of the supervisory information (SCR coverage ratio) taken from the report provided for in

Article L.356-23 of the French Insurance Code (Code des assurances).

Paris-La Défense, on the 28 July 2022

The Statutory Auditors

KPMG S.A. MAZARS

Pierre Planchon Anthony Baillet Jean-Claude Pauly 

Partner Partner Partner



 4 

76 CNP Assurances — 2022 Interim Financial Report

Certificate of the responsible 

of the half-year financial report

I certify, to the best of my knowledge, that the condensed accounts for the past semester have been drawn up in accordance with

applicable accounting standards and give a true and fair view of the assets, financial situation and results of the Company and of all

the companies included in the consolidation scope, and that the attached half-year activity report presents an accurate picture of

the significant events that occurred during the first six months of the financial year, their impact on the financial statements, the

main transactions between related parties and that describes the main risks and uncertainties for the remaining six months

of the year.

Paris, on 28 July 2022

CEO

Stéphane Dedeyan
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